
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call David Penrose, Governance 
Services on 01432 383690 or e-mail dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Health & Social Care Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Date: Thursday 2 May 2013 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

David Penrose, Governance Services 
Tel: 01432 383690 
Email: dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Health & Social 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Membership  
  
Chairman Councillor JW Millar 
Vice-Chairman Councillor SJ Robertson 
  

Councillor PA Andrews  
Councillor PL Bettington  
Councillor WLS Bowen  
Councillor MJK Cooper  
Councillor KS Guthrie  
Councillor JLV Kenyon  
Councillor JG Lester  
Councillor MD Lloyd-Hayes  
Councillor J Stone  
Councillor GA Vaughan-Powell  
Councillor PJ Watts  

 
  

 
 

 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  2 MAY 2013 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     

   
 To receive details of any Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 

of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES   9 - 14  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 April 2013.  
   
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 
(There will be no discussion of the issue at the time when the matter is raised.  
Consideration will be given to whether it should form part of the Committee’s work 
programme when compared with other competing priorities.) 

 

   
6. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC     
   
 To note questions received from the public and the items to which they 

relate. 
 
(Questions are welcomed for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee meeting so 
long as the question is directly related to an item listed on the agenda.  If you have 
a question you would like to ask then please submit it no later than two working 
days before the meeting to the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an 
answer can be provided at the meeting).   

 

   
7. CARE QUALITY COMMISSION (CQC)   15 - 16  
   
 To receive a presentation on the work of the CQC.  
   
8. HEREFORDSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP (TO FOLLOW)     
   
 To receive a report on the progress of the Herefordshire Clinical 

Commissioning Group. 
 

   
9. QUALITY ACCOUNTS: WEST MIDLANDS AMBULANCE SERVICE NHS 

FOUNDATION TRUST   
17 - 66  

   
 To consider the Quality Accounts of the West Midlands Ambulance Service 

NHS Foundation Trust. 
 

   
10. CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT (TO FOLLOW)     
   
 To receive the report of the audit of all cases within Children’s Social Care 

Services, undertaken by Outcome UK. 
 

   
11. FEEDBACK FROM MEMBERS SEMINARS ON CHILDREN'S 

SAFEGUARDING (TO FOLLOW)   
  

   

 To receive a report on feedback from the Members Seminars on Children’s 
Safeguarding. 

 



 

 

 
   
12. WORK PROGRAMME     
   
 To consider the Committees Work Programme  



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committee to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present 
if they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and 
consider whether it should form part of the Committee’s work 
programme when compared with other competing priorities. 

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an 
item listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask 
then please submit it no later than two working days before the 
meeting to the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an 
answer can be provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the 
Committee Officer can be found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committee is not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

Public Transport Links 

 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service that runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell 
Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar 
Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction with 
Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 

 

6



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through 
the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located 
in the circular car park at the front of the building.  A check will 
be undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or 
returning to collect coats or other personal belongings. 

 

7



8



 

 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Health & Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held at Council Chamber - Brockington on 
Friday 12 April 2013 at 10.00 am 
  

Present: Councillor JW Millar (Chairman) 
Councillor SJ Robertson (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: PL Bettington, WLS Bowen, JLV Kenyon, MD Lloyd-Hayes, J Stone 

and PJ Watts 
 
  
In attendance: Councillor PM Morgan (Cabinet Member, Health & Wellbeing) 

 
J Davidson (Director For People’s Services), G Dean (Scrutiny Officer), H 
Coombes (Assistant Director, People’s Services) and DJ Penrose (Governance 
Services) 
 

 
Officers: 
 
 

21. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors PA Andrews, KS Guthrie and GA 
Vaughan-Powell 
 

22. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)   
 

None. 
 

23. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Councillor P Bettington declared a non-pecuniary interest as a Member of the Wye Valley 
NHS Trust. 
 

24. MINUTES   
 
The Minutes for the Meeting held on the 22 March 2013 were approved. 
 

25. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE 
SCRUTINY   
 
There were no suggestions from the public. 
 

26. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC   
 
There were no questions from the public. 
 

27. PRESENTATION FROM THE NATIONAL COMMISSIONING BOARD, ARDEN, 
HEREFORDSHIRE AND WORCESTERSHIRE   
 
The Committee received a presentation from Mrs Sue Doheny, Director of Nursing, Arden, 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire Area Team, NHS England and Ms Marcia Pert, Head of 
Finance.  During Mrs Doheny’s presentation, the following areas were highlighted: 
 

• That the Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) had been authorised, 
but with directions that would ensure that additional support would be provided by 
NHS England to support CCG development.  The CCG’s self-assessment had been 

AGENDA ITEM 4

9



 

 

considered robust, but the authorisation process had identified that the CCG 
would benefit from support in developing their integrated plan and their oversight 
and management of their Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention plan 
(QIPP). 

 
• A programme of support had been agreed and it was expected that this would 

continue over a period of approximately 6 months, after which time it was 
expected that the CCG would be fully authorised 

 
• That system wide services would be commissioned locally on the basis of what 

was being undertaken nationally in order to provide full end to end integration of 
care.  Services would be patient and carer focused locally using small numbers of 
patients in order to ensure that they received the right outcomes.  Specialist 
needs would be dealt with on a regional basis. 

 
• The Primary Care Pathology Review would be considered in order to ensure that 

it was both financially and clinically sustainable.  Local CCGs across the region 
would be involved in this work, and where services were required locally, they 
would be kept locally. 

 
• That the Area Team was responsible as the Convener of the healthcare system 

across the Worcester Joint Services Review, the Wye Valley and George Eliot 
Trusts. It would convene the Quality Surveillance Group (QSG) which would act 
as a forum to allow concerns to be discussed across the Area.   

 
• The Area Team was member of the Strategic Oversight Board with the National 

Trust Development Authority in support of local stakeholders who were 
developing a sustainable solution for Wye Valley Trust. 

 
Ms Marcia Pert, Head of Finance, Arden, Herefordshire and Worcestershire Area Team 
reported that the Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (HCCG) was well placed 
in terms of its financial position.  It was required to comply with national planning 
requirements and would start out by planning for a surplus, and would include 
contingencies and change reserve funds.  The Area Team’s role was to coach, develop 
and hold the HCCG to account.   The assurance role of the LAT was overseen by NHS 
England. 
 
She went on to say that, to the HCCG’s advantage, there was well developed 
partnership working in the County.  The financial position for 2013/14 was challenging, 
but the HCCG’s Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention plan (QIPP) programme 
was comparable to that of 2012/13, when it had been possible to exceed savings.  The 
Transformational savings Programme that had been submitted was both robust and 
challenging, but the HCCG was not alone in their financial position across the region as 
a whole. 
 
In reply to a Member, Ms Pert said that the focus was very much on the position in 
2013/14, but the reversion to 1 year funding allocations meant that it was important that 
a surplus should be planned for and contingencies set aside.  A return to three year 
funding allocations would make this form of annual planning unnecessary.  She went on 
to say that the Wye Valley Trust had received £9.5m funding in 2012/13, and that there 
were plans to provide an additional £10m in 2013/14.  There were currently no plans for 
financial support after this point. 
 
The Chairman agreed with a Member’s comments that the total cost of the abolition of 
the old organisations and the setting up of the new structures should be considered by 
the Committee, and it was agreed that the matter would be considered at a meeting later 
in the year.  

10



 

 

 
In reply to a question regarding the stroke services, the Director of Nursing said that the 
Local Area Teams had been set up in order to provide services that were appropriate to 
the area. Provision of services would differ between Birmingham and more rural areas. It 
would not be possible to resource a service in Herefordshire that would be at the cutting 
edge, but it was important to have effective clinicians on hand who were experts in their 
fields.  If the volume of work was not present, then the service would be networked out 
across the region. 
 
The Chairman thanks the Director of Nursing and the Deputy Director of Finance for their 
presentation. 
 

28. WYE VALLEY NHS TRUST   
 
The Committee received a presentation from Mr Derek Smith, Chief Executive of the 
Wye Valley NHS Trust.  During his presentation, he highlighted the following areas: 
 

• That the Accident and Emergency 4 hour target had been 94.49% in 2012/13, 
when it should have reached 100%.  Since Christmas, there had been more 
demand for the service, which, combined with longer stay patients blocking beds, 
meant that targets had not been met. 

 
• Access targets for cancer patients had been met, apart from in the case of breast 

cancer, where patients had all been offered appointments, but not all had taken 
these up. 

 
• That the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) target of 100% had 

been met. 
 

• That the Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratios (HSMR) was higher than 
expected.  This was an indication of the expected number of patients who would 
die in the hospital.  This was a complex statistical measure, and the Trust was 
above the national average, but inside expected national levels. 
 

• That the hospital was performing better than its peers on day case surgery rates, 
and the readmission rates for patients were also lower. 

 
• That changes to the urgent care pathway were required, as well as an 

improvement to both efficiency and performance. 
 

• The underlying financial pressures for 2013/14.  The financial position had been 
stabilized, but as support of £9.7m would be required in the current year, it had 
not improved. 
 

• That it was unlikely that the Trust could achieve Foundation Status on its own, 
and a number of options were being considered. 
 

The Chairman said that he had attended the stakeholder events that had been staged to 
consider options for a way forward for the Trust and pointed out that were another 
organisation to consider merging with the Trust, it would expect additional funding.  He 
asked from where this funding would be forthcoming.  Mr Smith said that any additional 
funds would have to come from NHS England, and would be scrutinised by both the 
Treasury and the NHS.   Both bodies would prefer any such deal not to include a 
financial cost to the public purse. 
 
In reply to a question from a Member about the payment received by the Trust for patient 
care, the Chief Executive said that A&E patients were paid for at a national tariffs which 

11



 

 

were adjusted for market rates.  This meant that London hospitals were paid at a higher 
rate.  Larger A&E Departments, with throughputs of 150,000 patients were able to cover 
their costs.  The Trust had only 40,000 people through the door.  The out of hour’s 
service was provided by Prime Care at the moment, although the contract would be 
retendered this year. Commissioners would be considering this contract in the autumn. 
 
That servicing the PFI contract represented 10% of the hospital’s turnover.  There was a 
contract in place with the provider to ensure that the building was kept in good order. 
 
Members questioned the waiting levels in A&E. Mr Smith said that the situation would 
improve over the summer, as the cold weather did affect patients.  Most of the change in 
the demand was driven by the system, however, not the population.  There was 
something wrong with the system in England, where there was a much higher propensity 
to admit patients than there was in Scotland, for example. 
 
In reply to a question from a Member, Mr Smith said that whilst he would like to see the 
Wye Valley Trust configured as a standalone Foundation Trust, but that there were real 
difficulties associated with such an outcome. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Smith for his presentation. 
 

29. 2GETHER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST   
 
The Committee received a presentation from Mr Shaun Clee, Chief Executive of the 
2gether NHS Foundation Trust.  In his presentation, Mr Clee highlighted the following 
areas: 
 

• That the key national quality priority was that health outcomes mattered to 
patients and the public. Measuring and publishing information on health 
outcomes was important for encouraging improvements in quality. 

 
• That within the primary quality domain there were three areas that would help 

people be prevented from dying early, and these included cardiovascular, obesity 
and suicide.  For every 1% rise in the unemployment rate, there was a 0.97% rise 
in suicides.  There were early indications that despite this, the suicide rates had 
been reduced in Herefordshire. 
 

• That 95% of patients discharged from in patient units received a follow up within 
48 hours, which was better than the national targets. 
 

• That as part of the quality of life priorities was that the Trust would receive  
feedback as to whether the service had improved their quality of life through the 
use of standardised outcome tools.  The target was that 90% of people in contact 
with services would describe the impact of interventions on their discharge.  This 
would allow the service to know whether it had made a difference. 
 

In reply to a question from a Member, the Director for People’s Services said that the 
problem with preventing mental ill health was that many people did not present 
themselves to the service early enough.  There was a full root cause analysis 
undertaken of every premature death in order to understand where the service had not 
performed as it should have had.  Mr Clee added that it was important that people knew 
that the mental health services existed, and that every effort was made to de-stigmatise 
mental health conditions. 
 
The Director for People’s Services said that Herefordshire had a history and a projected 
challenge in relation to mental health suicides.  There was an employment pattern locally 
that leant itself to a higher than average suicide rate, and there were a high number of 

12



 

 

military and ex-military personnel in the County. Mr Clee said that both Shropshire and 
Staffordshire were commissioning services in the area of veteran mental health, and that 
the impact of failure in this area was understated. 
 
He went on to say that the general Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) 
programme was a nationally prescribed programme in relation to an evidence based 
model. The service was designed for life transitional psychological issues, and not for 
critical needs. Investment in IAPT was not sufficient, and further efficiencies would have 
to be found or services would have to be realigned into IAPT services.  The waiting and 
recovery times for the service were better than the national average. 
 
In reply to a further question, Mr Clee said that the Trust liaised with the police regarding 
those with mental health issues who were in custody, and there was a suite at the 
Stonebow Unit which acted as an alternative pace of safety for those in custody.  There 
were approximately two referrals a week to the unit 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Clee for his presentation. 
 

30. STRATEGIC PLAN FOR DELIVERING ADULT SERVICES   
 
The Committee received a presentation on the Strategic Plan for delivering Adult 
Services from the Director of People’s Services.  In her presentation, the Director 
highlighted the following areas: 
 

• That savings within adult social care had been delivered in previous years 
through better contracting, applying eligibility, and managing down the costs of 
providers.  However, to deliver further savings a more radical approach was 
required that relied on a system wide transformation programme with key 
partners.   This will need to focus on large scale prevention and early 
intervention. 

• Transformational change included managing the demand for formal social care 
intervention: helping people to remain independent for as long as possible; 
building the capacity of communities to support people; prioritising the 
development of services that support people’s recovery after an accident or 
episode of ill-health; ensuring that personalisation works for those with on-going 
needs to enable them to plan and direct their own support and have a choice of 
cost effective solutions. 
 

• The overarching risk to delivery was the scope, breadth and depth of savings 
required and speed of change necessary given the demands in the service.  A 
zero growth budget has been assumed, with savings to be delivered from 
demand management.  There was a risk that initially placements would continue 
to increase until new approaches were in place across the service. Essential to 
achieving this were an efficient and effective reablement service, a clear and 
effective signposting service to prevent potential customers becoming service 
users and an effective review service which managed clients out of the system in 
a safe and controlled manner.  That there were limited resources in the system 
should not be underestimated. 
 

In reply to a question from a Member, the Assistant Director People’s Services 
Commissioning said that there were a number of areas of contract re-engineering 
underway, and negotiations were in hand with providers such as Shaw Healthcare.  The 
vast majority were spot contracts, and block contracts regarding day care other than 
Shaw Healthcare would be discussed at a meeting with domiciliary care providers in 
order to help provide viable solutions, as it was in the interests of both parties to find a 
way forward. 

13



 

 

 
In reply to a question from a Member, the Director went on to say that a variety of ways 
of streamlining processes were being used.  In the practice areas there was a need to 
change the culture of the service, and lean systems were not being used for this aspect 
of the change process. 
 
The Cabinet Member (Health and Wellbeing) added that clarity for the clients for 
services should be provided so that a more targeted service could be provided for those 
who needed it.  

 
In reply to a question as to whether it would be clear that the costs of two social care 
placements had been saved by these initiatives and that the transformation plan was in 
hand.  The Assistant Director People’s Services Commissioning replied that at the end of 
the current month it was intended that there would be a system in place that would 
identify whether the Service had met its profile.  The improved reporting structure would 
allow all parts of the system to provide greater reassurance. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 THAT: 
 

a) The Committee note the development of a system wide approach to 
integrated commissioning as part of the Health and Wellbeing Board  
governance structures; and; 

b) The Committee was assured as far as it could be that the Adult 
Social Care 2013/14 savings and transformation plans and the 
governance structure to monitor delivery were in place. 

 
31. WORK PROGRAMME   

 
The Committee noted its work programme.   
 
During the discussion the following points were made: 
 

• That the Local Area Team should be invited to attend the meeting in October. 
 

• That the Quality Accounts for Social Care should be included in the Work 
Programme 

 
• That the Chairman was in discussion with the Centre for Public Scrutiny to 

include the Committee in the Centre’s pilot partnership working with the Care 
Quality Commission. 

 
The meeting ended at 1.20 pm CHAIRMAN 

14



 

  

MEETING: HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 2 MAY 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: CARE QUALITY COMMISSION 

REPORT BY:  Deb Holland, Compliance Manager, Central Region, 
Care Quality Commission 

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

 

Purpose 

To receive a presentation from the Care Quality Commission. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

15



16



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from David Penrose,  
Democratic Services Officer on: (01432) 383690 

 
  

 

MEETING: HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 2 May 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: WEST MIDLANDS AMBULANCE SERVICE NHS 
FOUNDATION TRUST QUALITY ACCOUNTS FOR 
2013/14 

REPORT BY:  CLINICAL QUALITY MANAGER, WEST MIDLANDS 
AMBULANCE SERVICE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST 

 

1. Classification 
Open. 

2. Key Decision 
This is not a key decision. 

3. Wards Affected 

County-wide.  

4. Purpose 

To consider the West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust Quality 
Accounts for 2013/14. 
. 

5. Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: The Quality Accounts be noted and comments to be provided to the West 
Midlands Ambulance Service. 

6. Key Points Summary 

6.1  The Committee is asked to note the West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation 
Trust Quality Accounts for 2013/14. 

7. Appendices 

7.1 The West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust Quality Accounts for 
 2013/14. 

8. Background Papers 

8.1 None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

17



18



QUALITY ACCOUNT 2013-14 

Summary Review of 2012-13

19



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 2 - of 44 March 2013 

Contents
INTRODUCTION ...................................................................................................................... - 3 -

Part 1 ....................................................................................................................................... - 4 -
1.1 Statement on quality from the Chief Executive of West Midlands Ambulance Service 
Foundation Trust ...................................................................................................................... - 4 -

Part 2 ....................................................................................................................................... - 5 -
2.1 Priorities for Improvements and Statements of assurance from the board from Projects 
from 2012-13. ........................................................................................................................... - 5 -
2.2 Performance Summary for year to date 2012-13 ........................................................... - 7 -
2.3 West Midlands Ambulance Service Year End Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and 

Ambulance Quality Indicators (AQI) ............................................................................... - 8 -
2.4 Review of Services and Assurances from the Board. ................................................... - 16 -
2.5 Trust Profile .................................................................................................................. - 17 -
2.6 Award winning service .................................................................................................. - 23 -
2.7 Participation in Clinical Research 2012/13 ................................................................... - 23 -
2.8 National Confidential Enquiries .................................................................................... - 25 -
2.9 Goals agreed by Commissioners in 2012-13 ................................................................ - 26 -
2.10 Care Quality Commission ............................................................................................. - 27 -
2.11 Data Quality .................................................................................................................. - 27 -
2.12 Participation in Clinical Audits ...................................................................................... - 28 -
2.13 NHS Number and General Medical Practice Code Validity .......................................... - 29 -
2.14 Information Governance Toolkit Attainment Levels ...................................................... - 29 -
2.15 Clinical Coding Error Rate ............................................................................................ - 29 -
2.16 Serious Incidents .......................................................................................................... - 29 -
2.17 Patient Experience ....................................................................................................... - 31 -
2.18 Workforce and Organisational Development ................................................................ - 33 -
2.19 Equality & Diversity ...................................................................................................... - 34 -

Part 3 ..................................................................................................................................... - 35 -
3.1 Priorities for Improvements 2013-14 ................................................................................ - 35 -

Annex 1: Statements from NHS Commissioning Board or relevant commissioning groups (as 
determined by the NHS (Quality Accounts) Amendment Regulation 20120 ........................... - 43 -

Annex 2: Local Healthwatch, Overview and Overview and Scrutiny Committees ................. - 43 -

Annex 3: Statement of directors` responsibilities in respect of the Quality Report ................ - 43 -
Further information ................................................................................................................. - 44 -

20



Q

IN

W
A
ht

Th
Tr
th

“D

Quality Acco

NTROD

Welcome to
nnual Rep
ttp://www.

he Trust w
rust is doin

hese have 

T

Delivering

W

ount

UCTION

o our Qual
ort -Quality

would like to
ng well wit
been prior

The Vision f

g the right
committe

West Midla

N

ity Accoun
y Account 

o share wit
th and whe
ritised.

for West M

t patient ca
ed workfo

nds Ambula

Page

nt Summar
2012/13 w

th you wha
ere improv

Midlands A

are, in the
orce, in pa

ance Servic

- 3 - of 44

ry, which a
which can b

at West Mi
vements in

mbulance 

e right plac
artnership

ce NHS Fou

aims to ta
be found a

idlands Am
n quality ca

Service N

ce, at the 
with loca

undation Tru

ke the key
t:

mbulance S
an be mad

HS Founda

right time
l health ec

ust 

M

y highlights

Service NH
de and the

ation Trus

e, through 
conomies

March 2013

s from the

HS Founda
 way in wh

t is: 

a skilled a
s”

3

e full 

ation
hich 

and

21



Q

P

1
M

M

Quality Acco

Part 1 

.1 Stat
Midlands

Mr Anthony

W

ount

tement
s Ambu

y Marsh S

West Midla

on qua
ulance S

BStJ, MBA

nds Ambula

Page

lity from
Service

A, MSc, FA

ance Servic

- 4 - of 44

m the C
Founda

ASI

ce NHS Fou

hief Exe
ation Tr

undation Tru

ecutive
rust

ust 

M

e of Wes

March 2013

st

3

22



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 5 - of 44 March 2013 

Part 2

2.1 Priorities for Improvements and Statements of assurance from 
the board from Projects from 2012-13. 
The quality improvements priorities are reviewed and performance is demonstrated in the table 
below for 2012-13 Year to Date.

Patient Safety Priorities 2012-13 

Priority Target Status
Commentary on 

Achievement to Date 

P
at

ie
nt

 S
af

et
y 

Falls Pathway To focus 

on prevention and 

education in this area, to 

make sure that people 

get referred to the right 

place at the right time for 

a better outcome. 

Qtr. 1: Planning Stages  !
Qtr. 2: Develop an 

Educational Package  ! Education package developed 

Qtr. 3: Distribute the 
Educational Package on to 

the Virtual Learning Site 
 ! Education package launched  

Qtr. 4: Identify the baseline  ! Baseline was realised 

Infection Prevention 

and Control. "• 

Premises Audit: to 

ensure premises are 

clean and safe for staff 

and patients 

• Vehicle Cleanliness 

Audit to ensure vehicles 

are clean and safe for 

staff and patients 

• Hand Hygiene Audit: to 

ensure compliance with 

hand hygiene standards 

at point of care 

Premises Cleanliness 
Audit: Minimum 90% "! last audit at 86% awaiting recent 

audit results 

Vehicle Cleanliness Audit: 
Minimum 90%  !

Hand Hygiene Audits: 
baseline & 85% 

compliance. 
 ! last audit at 85% awaiting recent 

audit results 

Near Miss Reporting – 
Patient Safety Incidents 

An increase in reports of 
incidents occurring that did 
not result in harm but could 

have a 25% increase 
 ! Increased by 27% 

23



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 6 - of 44 March 2013 

Patient Experience Priorities 2012-13 
Priority Target Status Commentary on 

Achievement to Date 

P
at

ie
nt

 E
xp

er
ie

nc
e Patient Survey offered

to service users 
proactively  

0.5 % of Emergency 
and Non – Emergency 

Patient Activity in 
2012/13 will be targeted

 ! At 3802 against revised target of 
5000 

Patient involvement 
when things go wrong 
(Being Open Policy) 

100% of Patient Safety 
incidents will comply 
with the Trusts ‘Being 

Open Policy’ 
 !

Being open is separated into 2 
categories. Harm incidents 

reported through incident reports 
and Serious Incidents: 

Patient Safety Incidents through 
incident reports 100% compliance 

Serious incidents currently at 
98.39% compliance/. 

Clinical Effectiveness Priorities 2012-13 

Priority Target Status
Commentary on 

Achievement to Date 

C
lin

ic
al

 E
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s Medicine Management

Appropriateness of Drug 

Administration 

85 % of patients will be 

treated. 

This target set considers 

that on occasion the 

patient within close 

vicinity to a hospital 

would benefit by timely 

transportation rather 

than delay on scene. 

 ! Achieving at 85% 

Management of Onset 

of Stroke 

90% of hyper-acute 

stroke patients have an 

onset of symptom time 

recorded where known

"!

Achieving at 87% to date possible 

non achievement of 90% 

therefore to continue this priority 

in 2013-14 

From the priorities and the performance described the Trust will build on them during 2013-14 as 
agreed by the board and as described in detail in Part 3 of this report. These priorities for 
improvement will have monthly data collection and be reported to the board at least quarterly. 
The rational for the selection is a combination of priorities unachieved in 2012-13, for example, 
the documentation of onset of symptoms, also CPI`s which are struggling to be achieved such 
as documentation of pain scoring. From listening to our patients such as the renal priority where 
WMAS has received complaints and PALs, and from this have engaged with patients to find out 
what really matters to them.  

24



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 7 - of 44 March 2013 

2.2 Performance Summary for year to date 2012-13  

April 2012! 
December 2012 

75% ! 8 min 75% ! 8 min 75% ! 8 min 95% ! 19 min 90% ! 30 min 
90% ! Triage in 

60 min 

Financial 
Month 

Red 1! 08 Min 
Performance 

Red 2 ! 08 Min 
Performance 

Red ! 08 Min 
Performance 

Red ! 19 Min 
Performance 

Green 2 
Performance 

Green 4 
Performance 

April 
 

83.1% 76.7% 76.8% 97.7% 97.0% 99.6% 

May  83.4% 74.8% 75.0% 97.7% 95.9% 99.8% 

 
June  

 
79.9% 77.2% 77.2% 97.5% 95.2% 99.6% 

July  81.2% 76.2% 76.3% 97.4% 94.4% 99.5% 

 
August  

75.6% 75.8% 75.8% 96.9% 92.9% 99.6% 

 
September  

 
77.0% 75.6% 75.6% 97.0% 92.9% 99.6% 

October  80.3% 78.3% 78.4% 97.8% 95.3% 99.7% 

 
November  

79.6% 78.3% 78.3% 97.9% 96.5% 99.8% 

 
December  

77.5% 74.0% 74.0% 96.9% 93.5% 99.6% 

Grand Total 79.7% 76.3% 76.4% 97.4% 94.8% 99.7%

       

January 2013! 
March 2013 

75% ! 8 min 75% ! 8 min 75% ! 8 min 95% ! 19 min 90% ! 30 min 
90% ! Triage in 

60 min 

Financial 
Month 

Red 1! 08 Min 
Performance 

Red 2 ! 08 Min 
Performance 

Red ! 08 Min 
Performance 

Red ! 19 Min 
Performance 

Green 2 
Performance 

Green 4 
Performance 

 
January  

81.2% 77.1% 77.2% 97.5% 94.9% 99.7% 

 
February  

80.0% 73.9% 74.1% 97.3% 93.2% 99.7% 

 
March * 

77.4% 68.9% 69.1% 96.1% 89.9% 99.5%

Grand Total 79.5% 73.4% 73.6% 96.9% 92.7% 99.6%

* up to and including 28th March 2013 

  

Red 1 ! 75% ! 
8 min 

Red 2 ! 75% ! 
8 min 

Red ! 75% ! 8 
min 

Red 19 ! 95% 
! 19 min 

Green 2 ! 
90% ! 30 
mins 

Green 4 ! 90% ! 
triage in 60 

mins 

National Target 75% 75% 75% 95% 90% 90% 

WMAS 
Performance 

79.7% 75.9% 76.0% 97.4% 94.5% 99.7% 

* Up to and including 7th March 2013 

  

25



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 8 - of 44 March 2013 

2.3 West Midlands Ambulance Service Year End Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI) and Ambulance Quality Indicators (AQI) 

To ensure patients of the West Midlands receive quality care from their ambulance service a set 
of key performance indicators has been set nationally. These help set our policies, guidelines 
and continue to develop an organisational culture that places quality at the top of the Trust’s 
agenda. 

From April 2011, the Department of Health introduced Ambulance Quality Indicators.  These are 
focused more on patient outcomes. 

The following reports the figures for each KPI/AQI and highlights the national mean percentage, 
the position of WMAS against other Trusts and whether the Trust was in the upper quartile of 
Ambulance Trusts 

2.3.1  Outcome from Cardiac Arrest  

The Ambulance Quality Indicator includes measurements for 2 elements: 
(a) Return of Spontaneous Circulation (ROSC) at hospital (i.e. the patient has a pulse on 

arrival at hospital)
(b) Survival to hospital discharge (i.e. the patient has survived the cardiac arrest and been 

discharged from hospital)

There are 2 patient groups that the above measures these are: 
(a) The overall group refers to all patients in cardiac arrest where resuscitation has been 

commenced.
(b) The comparator group is referring to those patients in cardiac arrest where resuscitation 

has been attempted, where the arrest was witnessed by a bystander, the rhythm that the 
patient was initially presenting with was VF/VF and the aetiology was presumed to be 
cardiac.

ROSC at Hospital Overall Group Comparator Group

2012!2013 (April to November 2012 data) 

Birmingham 26.01% 45.61% 

Black Country 30.63% 46.34% 

C&W 19.44% 26.67% 

West Mercia 27.85% 42.50% 

Staffs 28.62% 48.39% 

WMAS 27.50% 44.02% 

National Mean 25.39% 48.02% 

26



Q

S

2

ST
th
 

 

 

 

Quality Acco

Survival to Ho

Birm

Black 

C

West

St

W

Nation

Pos

Upper

.3.2  Acu

TEMI (ST-
hese patien

Aspirin - 
GTN – t
(improvin
Pain sco
Morphine
patients

W

ount

ospital Discha

ingham 

Country 

C&W 

t Mercia 

taffs 

WMAS 

nal Mean 

sition 

r Quartile 

ute ST-el

-elevation
nts receive
 this is im

this is a d
ng the oxy

ores – so th
e – a stro

West Midla

 

 

rge 

evation

myocardia
e the follow
portant as 
rug that in
gen supply
hat we can
ng pain ki

nds Ambula

Page

Over

7

6

6

1

5

7

7

myocard

al infarctio
wing:

it can help
ncreases b
y to the he
n assess w
ller which 

ance Servic

- 9 - of 44

rall Group 

2012!20

7.16% 

6.61% 

6.48% 

10.13% 

5.92% 

7.36% 

7.85% 

9th 

No 

dial infar

n): This is

p reduce b
blood flow 
eart muscle
whether the

would usu

ce NHS Fou

13 (April to N

rction (ST

s a type of

lood clot fo
through th

e and also 
e pain killer
ually be th

undation Tru

C

November 201

TEMI) 

f heart att

ormation
he blood v
reducing p

rs given ha
he drug of 

ust 

M

Comparator G

12 data) 

14.04% 

14.63% 

20.00% 

12.50% 

16.13% 

14.67% 

21.21% 

12th 

No 

tack. It is 

vessels wi
pain)
ave reduce
f choice fo

March 2013

Group 

important

thin the h

ed the pain
or heart att

3

that

eart

.
tack 

27



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 10 - of 44 March 2013 

  Analgesia – Sometimes if morphine cannot be given entonox, a type of gas, often given in 
childbirth, can be used. 

  SPO2 documented – The routine administration of oxygen to patients suspected of suffering 
an acute myocardial infarction is not recommended, however oxygen saturation should be 
monitored using pulse oximetery to ensure oxygen is offered to patients with an SpO2 of 
94% and below.

  Call to Needle - 68% of patients that receive thrombolysis should receive this treatment 
within 60 minutes of the initial call. The use of thrombolysis in the region has significantly 
reduced due to the availability of PPCI and patients only receive this treatment if they are 
more than 90 minutes from a specialist heart attack center. 

  Call to Balloon - 75% of patients that have Primary Percutaneous Coronary Intervention 
(PPCI) should do so within 150 minutes of the initial call. This treatment is provided at a 
specialist heart attack center.

The Care Bundle requires each patient to receive each of the above. 
The Ambulance Quality Indicators include measurements for the management of STEMI cases.  
The indicator has three components:  

(a) The percentage of patients suffering a ST-elevation myocardial infarction (STEMI) receiving 
thrombolysis within 60 minutes of call.
(b) The percentage of patients suffering a STEMI who are directly transferred to a centre 
capable of delivering primary percutaneous coronary intervention (PPCI) and receive 
angioplasty within 150 minutes of call.  
(c) The percentage of patients suffering a STEMI who receive an appropriate care bundle. 
The Ambulance Quality Indicators include measurements for the management of STEMI cases. 
The indicator has three components:  

(a) The percentage of patients suffering a ST-elevation myocardial infarction (STEMI) receiving 
thrombolysis within 60 minutes of call.
(b) The percentage of patients suffering a STEMI who are directly transferred to a centre 
capable of delivering primary percutaneous coronary intervention (PPCI) and receive 
angioplasty within 150 minutes of call.  
(c) The percentage of patients suffering a STEMI who receive an appropriate care bundle. 

28



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 11 - of 44 March 2013 

*Apr Nov!12!
data!

Aspirin!Administered! GTN!administered! 2!Pain!Scores!Documented!

2010 
2011!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

2010 
2011!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

2010 
2011!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

Birmingham! 97%! 98.88%! 96.50%! 98%! 98.88%! 98.00%! 77%! 88.81%! 87.50%!

Black!Country! 98%! 96.94%! 97.12%! 95%! 99.49%! 94.96%! 74%! 85.71%! 89.21%!

C&W! 97%! 98.44%! 100.00%! 93%! 97.40%! 97.73%! 86%! 87.50%! 86.36%!

West!Mercia! 96%! 97.69%! 97.41%! 96%! 95.83%! 96.55%! 82%! 92.13%! 93.10%!

Staffs! 92%! 94.27%! 91.81%! 95%! 96.35%! 92.98%! 67%! 84.38%! 83.04%!

WMAS! 97%! 97.37%! 96.08%! 96%! 97.65%! 95.94%! 78%! 87.88%! 87.54%!

National!Mean! 96.00% 95.90% 92.50% 

Position! 7th 4th 8th 

Upper!Quartile! No No No 

*Apr Nov!12!
data!

Morphine!administered! Analgesia!administered!

2010 
2011!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

2010 
2011!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

Birmingham! 63%! 82.09%! 79.00%! 59%! 82.84%! 80.00%!

Black!Country! 71%! 90.31%! 88.49%! 69%! 89.80%! 88.49%!

C&W! 80%! 88.54%! 89.77%! 76%! 87.50%! 92.05%!

West!Mercia! 84%! 87.50%! 95.69%! 82%! 87.04%! 93.97%!

Staffs! 64%! 77.60%! 78.36%! 64%! 79.69%! 78.36%!

WMAS! 73%! 85.06%! 84.73%! 70%! 85.24%! 85.01%!

National!Mean! 87.50% 89.90% 

Position! 5th 5th 

Upper!Quartile! No No 

!
!
The following elements are new measures therefore there are no previous year figures to compare to.

*Apr Nov!data!
**Apr Aug!

data!

SPO2!documented! Care!Bundle! Call!to!Needle! Call!to!Balloon!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

2011 
2012!

**2012 
2013!

2011 
2012!

**2012 
2013!

Birmingham! 100.00%! 100.00%! 74.63%! 70.00%!

Black!Country! 99.49%! 100.00%! 77.04%! 79.86%!

C&W! 100.00%! 100.00%! 77.60%! 79.55%!

West!Mercia! 100.00%! 100.00%! 79.63%! 85.34%!

Staffs! 100.00%! 100.00%! 68.75%! 64.33%!

WMAS! 99.91%! 100.00%! 75.56%! 74.23%! 48.57%! 20.00%! 87.23%! 84.92%
National!Mean! 96.90% 73.18%! 77.57%! 53.56%! 41.82%! 89.64%! 89.38%!

Position! Joint 1st 
!

5th! 10th! 7th!
Joint!
5th!

10th! 12th!

Upper!Quartile! Yes No! No! No! No! No! No!

29



Q

2

 

 

 

Th
th

Th
st

Th
Th
as
ca

Th

Quality Acco

.3.3  Stro

Blood pre

Blood glu
as a stro

FAST tes
o Fa

th
o A

ar
o S

cl
o Ti

he Care Bu
he patient a

his test ca
troke think

he Ambula
he Ambula
s the Clini
are bundle

he indicato

(a) The p
to fac
centr

(b) The 
appro

*Apr to No
data 

Birmingh

Black Cou

C&W 

West Mer

Staffs 

WMAS

National M

Position

Upper Qua

W

ount

oke / Min

essure – as 

ucose leve
oke 

st – this is 
acial weak

heir mouth 
Arm weakne
rms?
peech pro
early and 
ime to call 

undle requ
assessmen

an be use
k FAST an

ance Quali
ance Quali
cal Perfor
.

or has two 

percentage
ce) potent
re within 60

percentag
opriate car

ov 12 

201
201

am 98%

ntry 96%

96%

rcia 97%

100

S 98%

Mean 

n 

artile 

West Midla

ni Stroke

raised bloo

el - as patie

an assess
kness - can
or eye dro
ess - can t

blems - ca
understand
999

uires each 
nt.

ed by anyo
nd provide

ity Indicato
ity Indicato
mance Ind

componen

e of Face A
tially eligib
0 minutes o

e of suspe
re bundle.

FAST Docum

0!
11 

2011!
2012 

% 99.18% 

% 98.99% 

% 97.17% 

% 99.16% 

% 97.73% 

% 98.55% 

98.50% 

6th 

No 

nds Ambula

Page -

od pressure

ents with a

sment of th
n the perso
ooped?
he person 

an the pers
d what you

of the abo

one (not j
e valuable

ors include
or requires
dicator req

nts:  

Arm Speec
ble for stro
of call. 

ected stro

mented 

*2012!
2013 

100.00% 

100.00% 

98.60% 

99.54% 

96.88% 

99.08% 

ance Servic

- 12 - of 44

e may be a c

an altered l

he following
on smile? H

raise both

son speak 
u say? 

ove elemen

ust ambu
e informat

e measurem
s the Trust 
quires.  Th

ch Test (FA
oke throm

oke patient

Blood Glu

2010!
2011 

95% 

98% 

94% 

94% 

96% 

95% 

ce NHS Fou

4

contributing

evel may p

g:
Has

h

nts to be un

lance or h
ion when 

ments for 
to review 
erefore th

AST) posit
bolysis, w

ts (assess

ucose docume

2011!
2012 

*

98.48% 9

99.28% 9

96.97% 9

98.32% 9

95.61% 9

97.82% 9

97.10% 

Joint 3rd 

Yes 

undation Tru

g factor for s

present wit

ndertaken

hospital s
you call fo

the manag
all cases 

ere are 2 

ive stroke 
ho arrive 

ed face to

ented Bl

*2012!
2013 

20
20

98.56% 10

98.81% 10

96.65% 10

97.92% 10

96.46% 10

97.79% 10

ust 

M

stroke

th the sam

and docum

staff).  If yo
or an amb

gement of 
of Stroke, 
figures re

patients (a
at a hype

o face) wh

lood Pressure

010!
011 

2011
2012

00% 100.00

00% 100.00

00% 99.60

00% 100.00

00% 99.70

00% 99.88

99.90

Joint 1

Yes

March 2013

me symptom

mented du

ou suspec
bulance.

stroke cas
not a sam

ported for 

assessed f
eracute str

ho receive

 documented

1!
2 

*2012!
2013

0% 100.00%

0% 100.00%

0% 100.00%

0% 100.00%

0% 100.00%

8% 100.00%

0% 

1st 

3

ms

ring

ct a 

ses.   
mple

the

face 
roke 

e an 

 

!

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

30



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 13 - of 44 March 2013 

The following elements are new measures therefore there are no previous year figures to compare to.

*Apr Nov!12!
data!

SPO2!
documented!

Care!Bundle!for!the!
CPI!

Care!Bundle!for!the!
AQI!

FAST+!patients!
transported!to!a!
hyperacute!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

Birmingham! 88.23%! 97.79%! 98.56%!

Black!Country! 88.02%! 98.41%! 98.81%!

C&W! 81.82%! 94.34%! 95.25%!

West!Mercia! 89.06%! 97.47%! 97.45%!

Staffs! 86.21%! 93.64%! 93.96%!

WMAS! 86.97%! 96.52%! 97.00%! 93.87%! 94.74%! 65.34%! 64.48%!

National!Mean! 85.80% 95.90% 93.27%! 95.46%! 66.11%! 65.38%!

Position! 5th 4th 8th! 9th! 5th! 6th!

Upper!Quartile! No No No! No! No! No!

2.3.4 Asthma 
A common respiratory condition where the tubes going into the lungs are inflamed and thus narrowed, 
making it difficult for the patient to breath. Measurements of quality include the following being 
undertaken and documented during the patient assessment;

 Respiratory rate – how frequently the patient takes a breath, usually measured as number of times 
per minute. 

 PEFR prior to treatment – PEFR is a device used to determine and measures the flow on breathing 
out and indicates the amount of narrowing of the tubes. Measuring this before treatment allows 
doctors in the hospital to assess how bad the asthma attack was, and thus what further treatment is 
required.

 PERF after to treatment – this shows how effective the treatment given has been. 
 SpO2 before treatment -  this shows the amount of oxygen present in the blood 
 Oxygen – whether we gave oxygen as a treatment 
 Salbutamol – The most commonly used treatment for patients with asthma is Salbutamol. 

Salbutamol is a beta 2 agonist which is administered nebulised with oxygen and has a relaxant effect 
in the medium and smaller airways which are in spasm in acute asthma attacks. 

*Apr Nov!12!
data!

Respiratory!Rate!documented! Peak!Flow!documented! SPO2!documented!

2010 
2011!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

2010 
2011!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

2010 
2011!

2011 
2012!

*2012 
2013!

Birmingham! 100%! 99.88%! 100.00% 51%! 87.65%! 86.59%! 100%! 99.07%! 99.84%!

Black!Country! 100%! 100.00%! 99.79%! 40%! 85.28%! 85.39%! 100%! 99.71%! 99.79%!

C&W! 99%! 100.00%! 100.00% 50%! 90.30%! 89.24%! 99%! 98.59%! 100.00%!

West!Mercia! 99%! 99.66%! 100.00% 66%! 93.60%! 90.59%! 100%! 99.83%! 100.00%!

Staffs! 100%! 100.00%! 99.79%! 66%! 88.94%! 85.42%! 99%! 98.33%! 99.17%!

WMAS! 99%! 99.91%! 99.92%! 55%! 88.88%! 87.22%! 100%! 99.12%! 99.75%!

National!Mean! 99.10% 99.00% 78.30% 80.60% 92.30% 94.70% 

Position! Joint 1st Joint 1st 2nd 2nd 5th Joint 1st 

Upper!Quartile! Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes 

31



Q

 

2

Th
bl

Th
by

Quality Acco

*Ap

Bir

Blac

We

Nati

P

Upp

.3.5 Hyp

his is when
ood is lowe

his is usuall
y other cond

W

ount

pr Nov!12!
data!

rmingham!

ck!Country!

C&W!

est!Mercia!

Staffs!

WMAS!

ional!Mean!

Position!

per!Quartile!

oglycaem

n the amou
er than the n

ly related to
ditions.

*Apr Nov!

Birming

Black!Co

C&W

West!M

Staf

WMA

National

Posit

Upper!Q

West Midla

Salbutam

2010 
2011!

93%! 9

95%! 9

96%! 9

96%! 9

94%! 9

95%! 9

9

 

mia

unt of gluco
normal rang

o diabetes b

12!data!

gham!

ountry!

W!

Mercia!

ffs!

AS!

!Mean!

ion!

Quartile!

nds Ambula

Page -

ol!administer

2011 
2012!

*2
20

97.90%! 96

96.10%! 95

96.97%! 96

97.98%! 96

94.39%! 94

96.70%! 95

96.60% 97

4th 5

No N

ose (sugar)
ge.

but can be c

Blood!Glu
befo

2010 
2011!

100%!

99%!

99%!

98%!

100%!

99%!

J

ance Servic

- 14 - of 44

red! O

2012 
013!

201
201

.61%! 96.00

.20%! 97.00

.03%! 97.00

.47%! 98.00

.58%! 96.00

.80%! 97.00

.30% 

5th 

No 

) in the 

caused 

ucose!docume
ore!treatment

2011 
2012!

*

100.00%! 9

100.00%! 9

99.60%! 9

100.00%! 9

99.39%! 9

99.82%! 9

98.80% 9

Joint 1st Jo

Yes 

ce NHS Fou

4

Oxygen!admin

0 
11!

2011 
2012

0%! 98.14%

0%! 96.25%

0%! 97.37%

0%! 97.47%

0%! 94.55%

0%! 96.79%

96.20%

2nd

Yes 

ented! B

*2012 
2013!

20
2

99.36%! 98

99.60%! 9

98.89%! 9

98.38%! 9

98.10%! 9

98.91%! 9

99.00% 

oint 1st 

Yes 

undation Tru

nistered!

*2012 
2013!

%! 97.25%!

%! 96.03%!

%! 95.18%!

%! 96.00%!

%! 95.63%!

%! 96.14%!

% 96.50% 

Joint 
5th 

No 

Blood!Glucose
after!tre

010 
011!

201
20

800%! 97.7

98%! 97.5

99%! 97.9

97%! 99.1

97%! 97.1

98%! 97.8

97.9

Joint

Ye

ust 

M

Care!Bu

!

85.20%!

83.12%!

87.68%!

91.25%!

84.39%!

86.06%!

71.80% 

2nd 

Yes 

e!documented
eatment!

11 
12!

*201
201

79%! 98.88

55%! 97.62

98%! 97.50

16%! 98.38

12%! 96.84

88%! 97.91

90% 97.30

t 1st 3rd

es Yes

March 2013

ndle!

*2012 
2013!

83.68%!

82.25%!

86.40%!

88.47%!

81.88%!

84.30%!

76.70% 

2nd 

Yes 

d!

2 
3!

8%!

2%!

0%!

8%!

4%!

1%!

0% 

d 

s 

3

32



QQuality Acco

*A

B

B

W

N

W

ount

Apr Nov!12!da

Birmingham!

Black!Country

C&W!

West!Mercia

Staffs!

WMAS!

ational!Mea

West Midla

ta!

T

201
201

99

y! 99

99

! 99

98

99

n!

nds Ambula

Page -

Treatment!pr
patie

10 
11!

2011
2012

%! 98.95

%! 99.28

%! 98.79

%! 99.83

%! 96.67

%! 98.70

97.90

ance Servic

- 15 - of 44

rovided!to!
nt!

1 
2!

*2012
2013

5%! 99.20%

8%! 98.61%

9%! 98.33%

3%! 98.15%

7%! 97.68%

0%! 98.45%

0% 99.10%

ce NHS Fou

4

Direct!R
heal
profe

 2011 
2012!

%! 81.24%

%! 73.45%

%! 69.90%

%! 70.54%

%! 72.12%

%! 74.15%

% 64.30%

undation Tru

Referral!to!
thcare!
essional!

*2012 
2013!

75.32%!

71.63%!

71.94%!

70.14%!

73.00%!

72.64%!

61.80% 

ust 

M

Care!Bu

2011 
2012!

97.20%!

96.97%!

97.17%!

98.99%!

94.39%!

96.91%!

95.40% 

March 2013

undle!

*2012 
2013!

97.60%!

96.23%!

95.56%!

96.30%!

93.67%!

95.99%!

95.80% 

3

33



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 16 - of 44 March 2013 

2.4 Review of Services and Assurances from the Board. 

During 2012/13 West Midlands Ambulance Service provided NHS services as in diagram 1. The 
Trust sub-contracted to 1 voluntary urgent care provider. WMAS provides patient transportation 
services to other NHS Trusts.  To ensure excellent business continuity during times of surges in 
demand or in support of major incidents, the Trust has the facility to call upon a small number of 
ambulance sub-contractors to supplement service delivery.  Sub-contractors are subjected to a 
robust governance review before they are utilised.

The Trust has reviewed all of the data available to us on the quality of care in all of these 
services.

The total service income received in 2012/13 from NHS sources represents 98% of the total 
service income for the Trust.

Core Services:

Emergency and Urgent
Patient Transport Services
Emergency Preparedness

Special Operations

Finance

Estates

Nursing and 
Quality 

Safeguarding

Communications

Strategy and 
Business 

Development

Commissioning

Governance

Information 
Management and 

Technology

Fleet

Workforce, 
Training and 

Organisational
Development

Procurement

Infection 
Prevention Control

Medicines 
Manageme

34



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 17 - of 44 March 2013 

2.5 Trust Profile 

West Midlands Ambulance Service (WMAS) successful became an NHS Foundation Trust on 1st

January 2013. The Trust had been working towards Foundation Trust status for nearly two years 
before Monitor, the Foundation Trust independent regulator, approved our application.

West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust was formed on 1 July 2006 by the amalgamation 
of the former West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust, Coventry and Warwickshire 
Ambulance NHS Trust and Hereford and Worcester Ambulance Service NHS Trust. 
Staffordshire Ambulance Service NHS Trust joined in October 2007. 

The Trust serves a population of 5.6 million who live in Shropshire, Herefordshire, 
Worcestershire, Coventry and Warwickshire, Staffordshire and the Birmingham and Black 
Country conurbation. The West Midlands sits at the heart of England, covering an area of over 
5,000 square miles, over 80% of which is rural landscape.  

The West Midlands is an area of contrasts and diversity. It includes the second largest urban 
area in the country, covering Birmingham, Solihull and the Black Country where in the region of 
45% of the population live.  Birmingham City is England's second largest city and the main 
population centre in the West Midlands, second only to the capital in terms of its ethnic diversity 

The region is also well known for some of the most remote and beautiful countryside in the 
Country including the Welsh Marches on the Shropshire / Welsh borders and the Staffordshire 
Moorlands.

Emergency and Urgent: This is perhaps the best known part of the Trust and deals with the 
999 calls and responses to them. Initially, the Emergency Operations Centres (EOC) answer 
and assess the 999 calls. They will then send the most appropriate ambulance crew or 
responder to the patient or reroute the call to a Clinical Support Desk staffed by experienced 
paramedics. Where necessary, patients will be taken by ambulance to an A&E Department or 
other NHS facility such as a Walk in Centre for further assessment and treatment. 

Patient Transport Services: A large part of the organisation deals with the transfer and 
transport of patients for reasons such as hospital appointments, transfer between care sites, 
routine admissions and discharges and transport for continuing treatments such as renal 
dialysis.  PTS has its own dedicated control rooms to deal with the 800,000 patient journeys it 
undertakes annually, crews are trained as patient carers. 

Emergency Preparedness: this is a small but important section of the organisation which deals 
with the Trust’s planning and response to significant incidents within the region. It also aligns all 

35



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 18 - of 44 March 2013 

the Trusts Specialist assets and Operations into a single structure. Such assets include the staff, 
equipment and vehicles from the Hazardous Area Response Team (HART), Air Operations, 
Decontamination staff and the Mobile Emergency Response Incident Team (MERIT) The 
department constantly arranges training for staff and ensures the Trust understands and acts 
upon intelligence and identified risk to ensure we keep the public safe in terms of major 
incidents.

In addition they co-ordinate the Trust’s response to large gatherings such as football matches, 
pop concerts such as the V Festival and the WMAS response to the 2012 Olympic Games in 
which we supported colleagues in London, Ensuring the Olympic Torch passed through the 
region without incident, providing medical cover for the City of Coventry Stadium and also 
hosted the National Ambulance Coordination Centre.

Unscheduled Call Centre: The Trust operates an unscheduled call centre coordinating the 
provision of primary care services to patients across the county of Warwickshire, providing 
services to the public by referring calls to the appropriate primary care service and health 
professionals which significantly improves patient experiences and reduces the number of 
emergency ambulance call outs. It does this by arranging for primary care services to be sent to 
the patient’s home or arranging for the patient to visit an appropriate facility other than A&E. The 
unscheduled call centre co-ordinates the handling of Safeguarding referrals by operational staff.

Transformation
The Trust has established on a Transformation programme focusing on key projects. The 
Transformation Programme aligns everything towards strategic objectives by realising the end 
benefits.  There are keys projects which form part of the Transformation the Operating Model,
the Make Ready: and Efficiency Metrics
Operating Model
Our operational delivery model builds on national guidance which encouraged Ambulance 
Services to ‘look, feel, deliver and behave differently in the future’ and the recommendations 
from the Independent Review into the Trust’s operations and finances carried out in 2009 to 
deliver: 

  faster response for patients 
  more accurate assessment of patient need 
  improved healthcare advice to patients 
  more appropriate response 
  more effective treatment 
  transport, where necessary, to the most appropriate clinical setting 

Key features of the operational model are as follows: 
  regional Emergency Operations Centres (EOC) operating within virtual environment 
  NHS Pathways triage system and Directory of Services 
  Matching demand and capacity through accurate forecasting and scheduling
  Training, organisational development and clinical supervision  
  Working towards 70% paramedic skill and clinically qualified person on every 

vehicle
  Make Ready roll out across the Region  
  streamlining operations and increasing efficiency through service design 

36



Q

M
M
St
St
at
no
sh
du
by

M
lo
A
an
tra
di

Quality Acco

Make Read
Make Read

taffordshire
taffordshire
t small sta
on-clinical 
hift and wil
uring a shi
y rolling ou

 m
  im
 m
 m
  re

  pr
  pr

ex
on

  la
co

  be
tre

Make Read
ocated stra
mbulance 
nd spread
ansformati
sposal of a

W

ount

y
dy is a 
e division 
e, vehicle 

ations loca
staff prep
l also ‘mak
ft. Based o

ut the syste
maximise ve
mprove me
maximise un
minimise cri
educe cost
o reduc

mate
o Ensu

rovide ass
rovide read
xist to dep
n treating p

arger ambu
ommunicat
etter comp
eatment fo

y will be i
ategically
Stations p

d of incre
ion progra
around 50 

West Midla

dedicated
with only 
cleaning is
ted across

pare quality
ke ready’ r
on the Sta
em across 
ehicle clea

edicines ma
nit hour uti
itical vehic
s by;
cing the nu

erials are st
uring vehicl

urance reg
diness arr

ploy and m
patients
ulance sta
tions due t

pliance with
or patients 

nstalled v
across th

providing fa
ease from 
amme is 
surplus sit

nds Ambula

Page -

d ambulan
three majo

s undertak
s the Wes
y assured 
replacemen
affordshire

the Trust:
anliness an
anagemen
lisation 
le failure ra

umber of lo
tocked and
les are onl

garding ass
angements

manage the

ations will 
to better ac
h the deplo

ia a stage
he West 
acilities for 

88 ambu
complete.
tes.

ance Servic

- 19 - of 44

nce prepa
or ambula

ken by a su
st Midlands

ambulanc
nt vehicles
experience

nd minimise
t

ate of the f

ocations w
d sorted 
y stocked 

set control
s for Majo
e physical

provide b
ccess to m
oyment pla

ed impleme
Midlands 
crews; thi

ulance sta
Implemen

Make
rationa
short
quality
provisi
ambula

ce NHS Fou

4

aration sy
nce statio
ub-contrac
s. Under th
ces ready f
s for a crew
e several s

e cross infe

fleet includ

where med

to a requir

 and medic
or Incident 

assets all

better facil
managers
an due to i

entation pr
supported

s transform
ations to 
ntation of 

Ready
alisation a
to long te

y and eff
ion of fit f
ance servi

undation Tru

ystem ope
ns.  Curre
tor and als
he make r
for deploy
w if an amb
significant

ection

ding related

ical equipm

red standa

cal equipm
assets an

owing clin

ities for st

mproved v

rogramme
d by a n
mational ch
a total o
Make Re

impleme
re linked 

erm and w
ficiency im
for purpos
ce with bet

ust 

M

erating su
ntly in are
so the amb
ready syst

yment at th
bulance is 
benefits w

d equipme

ment, cons

rd

ment servic
nd ensure 
nical staff t

taff and im

vehicle will

of 12 am
network o
hange will 
of 147 sit
eady also 

entation a
developme

will genera
mproveme
se estate 
tter facilitie

March 2013

uccessfully
eas other t
bulance cre
em, specia

he start of 
contamina

will be reali

nt

sumables

cing routine
ancillary s

to concent

mproved s

 lead to fa

mbulance h
of Commu
see the re
es when 

involves 

and esta
ents over 
ate signific
nts plus 
for a mod
es for staff

3

y in 
than
ews
alist 
the

ated
ised 

and

es
staff
rate 

staff

ster

hubs 
unity
each

the
the

ates 
the 

cant 
the

dern
.

37



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 20 - of 44 March 2013 

Efficiency Metrics 
By improving operational efficiencies and changes to the unit hour utilisation (A unit hour 
represents one hour of service by a fully equipped and staffed ambulance available for 
dispatch).The Trust is able to operate efficiently and is maximising the resources available to 
respond to patients. This will also ensure that, were appropriate, patients are treated at the most 
suitable location and discharged at home if able.

The development of NHS pathways and the expected benefits to be gained from releasing 
efficiencies within the system will ensure that the changes to the operating model can be 
managed in a safe and controlled manner and allow for a stability of the workforce despite and 
increasing activity.  This option will enable the trust to improve the level of clinical care offered to 
patients.  It will allow appropriately trained staff to be deployed effectively to the treat patients 
with the care they require. It will ensure that the correct level of advice is offered from the initial 
outset by utilising its deployment protocols efficiently and will enable a service to patients which 
treats them at home if necessary or conveys them to the correct location and service they 
required.

As a result of the Trust’s transformational plus the application of sound staff management 
processes, the Trust will be securing significant levels of additional efficiency from its workforce.  

NHS Pathways – The Journey Continues..

Background

NHS Pathways sets out to deliver a single clinical assessment tool that provides an effective 
assessment over the telephone in any setting taking Health related calls from the public. This 
can include 999, NHS Direct, GP Out of Hours, NHS 111 and any other Single Point of Access 
number in place and ensures every patient accessing urgent and emergency care services is 
effectively assessed, reducing the need for them to repeat information and helping to make sure 
that they are directed to the right care at the right time 

Following the successful deployment of NHS Pathways in 2011, work has been continuing to 
‘fine tune’ the system so that it provides both a safe and consistent platform for triaging calls and 
enabling the delivery of nationally set performance targets for the Trust. 

38



Q

N
up
m
th

N
Th
se
se
se
rig
nu
si

Th
N
he
th

Th
re
nu
an
co

A
(tr
el
an

A
pe
an
su
th

W
w
w
be
pl
T

Quality Acco

HS Pathw
pdates and

made to the
he NHS Pa

HS 111
he NHS 1
ervices wh
ervice is p
ervice that 
ght time. I
umbers; 99
tuations.

he introduc
HS delive
ealthcare s
hey are dire

he service
eceive its fi
umber “wh
nd doctor’s
ontact the s

As part of 
ransferred
ectronicall
n ambulan

review ha
erforming
nd benefits
uch as He
he expecte

With this in 
with the Na
was implem
enefits wil
lan is start
reat levels

W

ount

ays has no
d improvem
e Directory
athways as

11 service
en they ne

part of the 
ensures p
n future if 
99 for life-

ction of the
ers this ca
service by 
ected to. 

, which in 
irst calls a

hen it’s les
s Out of Ho
service dir

the NHS 
) to the am
ly and simp

nce resourc

as been co
against th
s, indicatio
ear and Tr
d benefits 

mind and
ational Cli
mented to
l be realis
ting to del
 are slowly

West Midla

ow been in
ments to th
 of Service

ssessments

e is being i
eed medica
wider rev

people rece
people ne

-threatenin

e new serv
are. It will 

providing

the West 
head of th
s urgent th
ours call h
rectly.

111 servi
mbulance s
ply appear
ce without 

mpleted o
e original 

ons were t
reat levels
to the Trus

d following 
nical Team

o ensure 
sed by the
iver and th
y increasin

nds Ambula

Page -

n operation
he Pathway
es (DOS) t
s.

introduced
al help fas

visions to t
eive the rig
eed to con
g emergen

vice will als
enable th

comprehe

Midlands w
e regional 
han 999”. 
andling se

ice, there 
service for 
r on the Am
delay. Th
Handler h

The Trus
the Com
robust fo

n how the 
expected
hat some 

s would no
st.

further dis
ms, an ac
that the 

e Trust. T
he Trusts 
g.

ance Servic

- 21 - of 44

n within WM
ys software
to further im

d to make 
st, but it’s n
the urgent
ght care, fr
ntact the N
ncies, thei

so help to 
he commi

ensive info

will be pro
formal lau
The 111 s

ervices as w

will be a 
an ambula

mbulance d
is is a new
has no inv

st continue
mmissioner
or patients.

system is 
outcomes 
elements,
ot provide 

scussions
ction plan 
expected 

The action 
Hear and 

ce NHS Fou

4

MAS for th
e have bee
mprove the

it easier fo
not a life-th
 care syst
om the rig

NHS for ur
r GP surge

drive impr
ssioning o
rmation on

vided by N
unch in Ma
service wil
well as att

proportion
ance dispa
dispatcher
w concept 
volvement i

es to work 
rs to ensu

undation Tru

he last 18 m
en made. U
e functiona

or the pub
hreatening
tem to del
ht person,
gent care 
ery or 111

rovements
of more e
n people’s 

NHS Direct
arch. 111 is
l replace N
racting new

n of calls 
tch. These
s screen fo
for WMAS
in the call. 

closely wit
ure that th

ust 

M

months an
Updates ha
ality and in

lic to acce
situation. 
iver a 24/
in the righ
there will 
 for non-li

s in the wa
effective an

needs and

t, has alre
s promoted
NHS Direc
w callers w

that will b
e calls will 
or them to 
S where th

th both the
he service

March 2013

d a numbe
ave also b

ntegration w

ess healthc
The NHS 
7 urgent c

ht place, at
only be th
fe-threaten

y in which 
nd produc
d the servi

ady starte
d as being 
ct (0845 46
who choos

be re-direc
be transfer
then dispa

he WMAS 

e provider 
e is safe 

3

er of 
een
with

care
111
care
t the 
hree
ning

the
ctive
ices

d to 
the

647)
e to 

cted
rred
atch
Call 

and
and

39



Q

M

In
m
a
up
Pa

A
eq
In
le

In
C
ca
go

Quality Acco

Major Traum

n March 20
major traum

major stak
p a dedic
aramedics

ll WMAS c
quipment h
n addition a
ed car team

n the 12 m
entres by 
ases with o
o live. 

W

ount

ma Netwo

012 a regio
ma injuries 
keholder in
cated trau
s.

clinicians w
has been s
a doctor led
m that resu

months sin
WMAS an
over 300 o

West Midla

ork

onal traum
get access

n the plann
uma desk 

will receive
supplied to
d helicopte
lts in 24 ho

nce go live
nd the doct
of these att

nds Ambula

Page -

ma care sys
s to the be

ning and im
in our c

e additiona
 all front lin

er team in t
our suppor

e more tha
tor led pre
tended at 

ance Servic

- 22 - of 44

stem was 
est possible
mplementat
control roo

al training 
ne ambula
the day ha
rt at major 

an 2000 p
e hospital t
night indic

ce NHS Fou

4

introduced
e emergen
tion of this
om staffe

in trauma
nces and r

as been su
trauma ca

patients ha
teams have
cating an u

WMAS
the Na
in a 
prepar
countr
pre ho
good
implem

Based
where
been
could
patien
trauma

undation Tru

d to ensure
ncy trauma
 system. T
d by exp

a care and
response c
pplemente
ses.

ave been t
e attended
nmet need

S was prais
ational Clin
recent vis
red ambu
ry and he 
ospital ser

practice
mented nat

 on evid
trauma

implement
expect to 
ts survive 
a incidents

ust 

M

e that peop
a care. WM
This has in
perienced

d specialis
cars.
ed by a nig

taken to M
d more tha
d for this s

sed by Pro
nical Direct
sit as be
ulance se
said that o
rvice is an

e that 
tionally.

dence fro
systems
ted, the W
see an ad
per year fo

s.

March 2013

ple who su
MAS has b
cluded set
Critical C

t trauma c

ght time do

Major Trau
an 500 trau
service prio

ofessor W
tor for Trau

eing the b
ervice in 
our doctor 
n example

should

om overs
have alre

West Midla
dditional 40
ollowing m

3

uffer
een
tting
Care

care

octor

uma
uma 
or to 

illett
uma
best 
the
led

e of 
be

seas
eady 
ands 
0-60
ajor

40



Q

2

2
Th
of
by

D

Fi
co

Th
H
be
ou
em
ac
ge

Th
pr
su

S
P
ar
ev
ca
he
fo

Th
sl
C

Quality Acco

.6 Awa

.7 Part
he number
f provider] 
y a researc

uring 2012

ive of thes
omprises c

he other 2
ealth Rese
etween a 
utcomes th
mbed app
ccount of 
eographica

he involve
roviding ev
upport imp

ummary o
re-hospita
rrest-The s
valuate the
ardiac com
eart has st
or out of ho

his study s
ower than
ountry and

W

ount

ard win

Nation

•AS
•AS
•AS
•AS

•ASI NHS Am

ticipatio
r of patien
in 2012/13

ch ethics c

2-13 WMAS

se are por
clinical rese

2 studies i
earch and
university 

hrough the
proaches to

the way 
al area. Th

ement of 
vidence of
roved patie

of studies:
al random
study is sp
e effect o

mpression i
topped .Th
ospital card

started rec
n expected
d Coventry

West Midla

ning se

nal Awards

SI Air Ambulance
SI Care Assistant
SI Paramedic of t
SI Technician of t

mbulance Serv

on in Cl
nts receivin
3 that were
committee 

S has bee

tfolio studi
earch stud

nclude a r
 Care (CL
and the 

e conduct a
o research
that healt
ese studie

ambulance
f best pra
ent care, tr

:
mised ass
ponsored b
f using a 
in the even
his is in co
diac arrest,

cruiting in 
d national 
y & Warwic

nds Ambula

Page -

ervice

s 2012

e Team Award
t of the Year
the Year
the Year

vice of the Yea

linical R
ng relevant
e recruited
was [inser

n involved 

ies. The N
ies which a

research d
LAHRC) st
surroundin
and applic
h and its 
th care is

es are also 

e trusts in
ctise withi
reatment a

essment
by Warwick
LUCAS 2

nt of a pati
mparison t
, looking at

April 2010
recruitmen

ckshire area

ance Servic

- 23 - of 44

ar

Researc
t health se

d during tha
rt number].

with seve

National Ins
are of high

database a
tudy. CLA
ng NHS o
cation of ap

dissemina
s increasin
 supported

n research
in pre hos
and outcom

of a mec
k Universit
2 devise w
ient having
to manual 
t outcomes

0 and has
nt. It inclu
as.

ce NHS Fou

4

ch 2012/
ervices pro
at period to
(nb this will be u

n research

stitute for 
h quality an

and Collab
HRC stud
rganisation
pplied hea
ation that 
ngly delive
d by the NI

h studies 
spital care
mes.

chanical c
ty (Warwic
which is a
g a cardiac
chest com

s for patien

s now bee
udes patien

undation Tru

/13
vided or s
o participa
updated for the 

h studies. 

Health Re
nd clear va

boration fo
ies are co
ns, focuse
lth researc
are specif

ered acros
HR.

is an imp
, and thus

compress
ck Clinical T

mechanic
c arrest, th
mpression
nts.

en extende
nts within 

ust 

M

sub-contrac
ate in resea

final Quality Ac

esearch (N
alue to the 

r Leadersh
ollaborative
ed on imp
ch. They w
fically des
ss sectors

portant ste
s providing

sion devic
Trials Unit
cal device

hat is, on p
by ambula

ed to June
the Birmi

March 2013

cted by [na
arch appro
ccount)

NIHR) portf
NHS.

hip in App
e partnersh
roving pat

will create 
igned to t

s and a w

ep forward
g evidence

ce in card
t). Its aim i

e that deliv
atients wh

ance clinici

e 2013 due
ngham, Bl

3

ame
oved

folio

plied
hips
tient 
and
take
wide 

d in 
e to 

diac
s to 
vers 
hose
ians 

e to 
lack 

41



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 24 - of 44 March 2013 

Optimisation of the management of stroke and TIA (Transient Ischemic Attacks – a “mini 
stroke”) is a study that continues this year and is sponsored by Birmingham University which is a 
CLAHRC project 

This involves reviewing data related to TIA and Stroke management from local GPs, the 
Ambulance Service, and local hospital out patients, inpatients and A&E services as well as 
patients and comparing these data against “optimum care”. This comparison will ascertain the 
reasons why actual care deviates from recommended practice and result in the identification of 
key barriers to optimum care. 

The results from the above will be used to inform local commissioners of care, GPs, specialists 
and patients regarding gaps in and barriers to optimal care. This information will then be used to 
support a service improvement programme to improve the care of patients with the conditions 
stroke or `mini stroke` TIA 

Medicated Sleep and wakefulness is a study is sponsored by Warwick University which 
continues this year. This is a study of stakeholder views on the management of sleep ‘problems’ 
and the appropriate role of sleep medications in management policies and practices. Some of 
WMAS staff are taking part in interviews and focus groups. This study will contribute to future 
national policy and practice regarding sleep and wakefulness promoting drugs, and to broader 
debates on the public health and safety aspects of sleep for society. 

Exploring, understanding and reducing emergency cancer admissions- The study seeks to 
explore the experiences of patients with lung cancer and a comparative group of patients with 
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) who have had an emergency admission. To gain 
an overall understanding of the incident, the experience of carers and health professionals 
(including WMAS ambulance personnel) involved with individuals’ care will also be explored. 
Participants will be recruited for interviews from three hospitals in the West Midlands and 
WMAS.

Sponsored by Warwick University it is hoped that the insights from this research will facilitate the 
development of community and hospital services designed to reduce or avoid emergency 
admissions, and to improve hospital management following admission of these patient groups. 
This study aims to understand patients’ experiences of the time leading to admission, the 
admission process itself and their experiences in the immediate period following admission. 

Informing delivery of care through research evidence; an investigation of randomised 
control trial implementation in pre-hospital emergency care - This study sponsored by
Swansea University. It aims to assess the number and progress of Randomised Controlled 
Trials (RCTs) in pre-hospital emergency care, to describe factors which facilitate and hinder their 
implementation and influence in this field. RCTs are the most effective method for evaluating 
healthcare interventions; however within ambulance services they are infrequent and often 
mediocre.

This research project will provide a real understanding of the factors affecting implementation, 
as well as barriers and facilitators to the number, progress and quality of trials. Outputs will 
include recommendations at both practice and policy levels that will inform emergency pre-
hospital care internationally 

42



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 25 - of 44 March 2013 

Atlantic study- This study involves use an anti-platelet drug for STEMI which is a type of heart 
attack. This is for patients prior to receiving Primary Percutaneous Coronary Intervention (PPCI). 
The trial aims to show whether use of this drug sooner i.e. in the pre hospital setting rather than 
in hospital, improves patient outcomes. 

WMAS is working in conjunction with University Hospital Coventry & Warwick with paramedics in 
the area of Coventry and Warwickshire, and is the first commercial trial that WMAS has been 
involved in. 

Out of hospital cardiac arrest research database-This is a research database being 
developed by Warwick Clinical Trials Unit and sponsored by Warwick University. Funding has 
been provided by the Resuscitation Council UK and the British Heart Foundation It will be a 
national research database for which all ambulance trusts will provide data. 

Cardiac arrest is the term used to describe sudden cessation of heart function. After cardiac 
arrest occurs, blood stops being circulated to the vital organs and consciousness is lost within 
seconds. Unless resuscitation is started promptly and an effective circulation re-stored death will 
occur within a few minutes. 

Each year about 30,000 people receive resuscitation for an Out of Hospital Cardiac 
Arrest (OHCA) in the United Kingdom from which only about one in twenty people survive to go 
home from hospital. Information collected by the Department of Health has shown there to be 
wide geographical variation in the number of people that survive an OHCA. In simple terms 
people in some parts of the country are twice or three times more likely to survive than in other 
areas. These apparent inequalities in survival are a major public health concern. 

This project will try to find out the reasons behind such big differences in outcome. It aims to 
inform the  development of  a standardised approach to collecting information about OHCA and 
how patient outcomes are followed up to confirm if a resuscitation attempt was successful. It 
aims to explain the reasons why survival rates vary between regions and to provide feedback to 
ambulance services to allow benchmarking and quality improvement work. 

2.8 National Confidential Enquiries 

During 2012/13 there were no National Clinical Enquiries with a focus on Ambulance Trusts. The 
Trust was invited to participate in one national confidential enquiry covered by the NHS services 
that West Midlands Ambulance Service provides.

43



Q

2
A
ac
em
pa
m
ht
nh

U
Th
ha
en
of

N

1

2

3

4

Quality Acco

.9 Goa
proportion

chieving q
mergency 
ayment fra

month perio
ttp://www.m
hsft.gov.uk

se of the C
he Trust w
ave a pos
nsure mile
f the servic

o CQUIN

1 NHS Nu

2 Make Re

3 High ser
users 

4 Commun
Support 
Defibrilla

W

ount

als agre
n of West
quality imp
and urgen

amework. 
od are avai
monitor-
k/sites/all/m

Commiss
worked clos
itive impac

estones we
ce.

N Goal 

umber U
a
fa
c

eady T
s
c
s
th
re
im

rvice T
p
w
e

nity Life 
and

ation

Im
c
c
a

West Midla

eed by C
t Midlands
provement
nt commis
Further de
ilable onlin

modules/fck

ioning Qu
sely with c
ct on the p
ere achieve

CQ

Use of NHS
and Emerg
acilitate the
clinical outcom
This is a tw
support the 
comprehensiv
scheme in a
hat will resul
eady areas 
mplemented 
The CQUIN p
pro-active ma
who are frequ
emergency a
mproving re
circulation (R
cardiac arres
and Partnersh

nds Ambula

Page -

Commis
s Ambulan
t and inn

ssioners th
etails of th
e at: 

keditor/plu

uality Inno
commission
patients w
ed and the

QUIN Detail 

Number fo
gency patie
e measurem
mes
wo year CQ

developme
ve make 
a phased a
t in a total o

across the
fully by Marc

provides for 
anagement o
uent users o
mbulance se
turn of spon

ROSC) rates 
t through Co
hip Engagem

ance Servic

- 26 - of 44

ssioners
ce Service

novation g
hrough the
he agreed 

ugins/ktbro

ovation Sc
ners and a

who use ou
e outcome 

E

or Urgent 
ents to 
ment of 

£

QUIN to 
ent of a 

ready
approach 

of 5 make 
e region 
ch 2014 

£

assertive
of people 

of the 999 
ervice.   

£

ntaneous 
following

ommunity
ment

£

ce NHS Fou

4

s in 201
e income 
goals agre
 Commiss
goals for 

wser/_ope

hemes (C
agreed 4 k
ur service. 

for patien

Expected
value 

£976,905 

£1,367,66
7

£976,905 

£586,143 

undation Tru

12-13
in 2012/13

eed betwe
sioning for 
2012/13 a

enTKFile.ph

QUIN) for 
key areas o

The proje
ts resulted

Achie

Successful 
Qtr. 4 to be c

Successful 
Qtr. 4 to be c

Successful 
Qtr. 4 to be c

Successful u
4 to be confi

ust 

M

3 was con
een the T
r Quality a
and for the

hp?id=327

r 2012/13
of innovati
ects were 
d in an imp

evement of S

up to Qtr. 3
confirmed Ap

up to Qtr. 3
confirmed Ap

up to Qtr. 3
confirmed Ap

up to Qtr 3,  
irmed April 2

March 2013

nditional u
Trust and
nd Innova
e following

75

ion that wo
maintained
proved qua

Set Target 

3, On targe
pril 2013 

3, On targe
pril 2013 

3, On targe
pril 2013 

On target fo
2013 

3

upon
d its
ation 
g 12 

ould
d to 
ality 

et for 

et for 

et for 

r Qtr 

44



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 27 - of 44 March 2013 

2.10 Care Quality Commission  
West Midlands Ambulance Service is required to register with the Care Quality Commission and 
its current registration status is fully compliant without restrictions.  

The Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against West Midlands 
Ambulance Service during 2012/13 

The Trust has been registered to date with the CQC without conditions since 2010. This 
included compliance with the Health and Social Care Act 2008 and Hygiene code (HC2008). 

During February 2013 the CQC carried out a review of the service that included; inspections of 
premises and ambulances, interviews with patients, staff and managers, feedback from partner 
organisations and local authority scrutiny committees and review of all our compliance with other 
regulatory bodies. We await the CQC report to be published and WMAS is confident that this 
organisation still remains compliant with all the requirements of our registration under the Health 
& Social Care Act (2008). 

2.11 Data Quality  
West Midlands Ambulance Service did not submit records during 2012/13 to the Secondary 
Uses service for inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics which are included in the latest 
published data 

West Midlands Ambulance Service takes the following actions to improve data quality.

For the clinical indicators, the clinical audit department completes the data collection and 
reports.  The patient group is identified using standard queries based on both the paper Patient 
Report Forms and the Electronic Care System.  These clinical records are then audited 
manually by the Clinical Audit Team using set guidance.  The data is also clinically validated and 
then analysed following an office procedure that is available to the Clinical Audit Team and is 
held on the central Clinical & Quality network drive.

Initial checking: 
  For the clinical indicators, the clinical audit team completes the data collection and 

reports.
  The Patient Report Forms/Electronic Care Summary records are audited manually by the 

Clinical Audit team.
  A process for the completion of the indicators is held within the clinical audit department 

on the central network drive 
  A clinician then reviews the data collected by the Clinical Audit Team. 
  The data is then analysed and reports generated following a standard office procedure.  A 

second person within the clinical audit team checks for any anomalies in the data. 
  The results are checked against previous month’s data checking for trends and 

consistency. 
  The clinical indicators are reported through the Trust Clinical Performance Scorecard. 
  The reports are then disseminated to the Trust Board, Commissioners and Service 

Delivery meetings 

45



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 28 - of 44 March 2013 

2.12 Participation in Clinical Audits 
The Trust has a comprehensive Clinical Audit Programme which includes both national and local 
audits.

The Clinical Audit Department have been consistently reporting, and feeding into the 
development of the National Clinical Performance Indicators (CPI’s) since their implementation 
in 2008.  In addition to this the department has been supporting the Trust Clinical Audit 
Programme which ensures local and national requirements are met.

From April 2011 the new Ambulance Quality Indicators (AQI) were introduced for all Ambulance 
Trusts, these are focussed on patient’s outcomes.  There are four areas that are relevant to the 
Clinical Audit Department, these are: 
  Outcome from Cardiac Arrest – Return of Spontaneous Circulation 
  Outcome from Cardiac Arrest – Survival to discharge 
  Outcome from acute ST elevation myocardial infarction (STEMI) 
  Outcome from Stroke for ambulance patients 
To provide assurance to the Trust the CPI’s and AQI’s are reported on a monthly basis.  This 
provides information to managers and staff to highlight areas of good practice and where 
required improvements to be made through local action plans. 

Reporting on clinical performance has been amended to ensure consistency of reporting 
throughout the Trust and to ensure the clinical performance of the trust is clear for all 
audiences.  The clinical performance scorecard has been developed and has been updated on a 
monthly basis to report on the Clinical Performance Indicators and the Ambulance Quality 
Indicators.  This has now been further expanded to report on all Quality Account projects, and 
the work completed within the Clinical & Quality Directorate.  The report is presented to Trust 
Board, Clinical & Quality Governance Committee and is available on the Trust Intranet. 

The clinical audit programme includes clinical audits that have been prioritized by the Clinical 
Audit Programme Group and include: 

  Management of Controlled Drugs 
  Management of Prescription Only Medicines 
  Patient Group Directions (PGDs) 
  Examining the delivery of Mental Health Care 
  Infection Control - Vehicle Cleanliness 
  Infection Control - Station Cleanliness 
  Infection Control – Cannulation 
  Infection Control - Hand washing Audit 
  Management of Asthma 
  Clinical Records Documentation 
  Care of Patients Discharged at Scene 
  Managing Acute Coronary Syndrome 
  Deliberate Self Harm 
  Feverish Illness in Children 
  Management of Head Injury 
  Management of Peri-Arrests 
  Management of Obstetric Emergencies 
  Management of Medicines Management 

46



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 29 - of 44 March 2013 

2.13 NHS Number and General Medical Practice Code Validity 
West Midlands Ambulance Service did not submit records during 2012/13 to the Secondary 
Uses service for inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics which are included in the latest 
published data. 

2.14 Information Governance Toolkit Attainment Levels  
West midlands Ambulance Service Information Governance Assessment Report overall score 
for 2012/13 was 78% and was graded satisfactory in 2012/13.

2.15 Clinical Coding Error Rate  
West Midlands Ambulance Service was not subject to the Payment by Results clinical coding 
audit during 2012/13 by the Audit Commission.

2.16 Serious Incidents 
Serious Incidents (SIs) are events that place, or could have placed, the Trust at significant risk.  
The risk may, for example, be clinical, organisational, financial or reputation. Whilst the primary 
focus is on patient safety, the criteria for an SI also applies to staff, visitors, contractors and 
members of the public if on NHS property/business. 

2012-13 Serious Incidents to date
During 2012-13 the Trust identified 25 Serious Incidents (SI) requiring investigation.

General themes relate to: 

  Clinical assessment and management of patients 
  Management of calls into the Trust (such as Health Care Referrals and 999’s) – This 

includes the use of the NHS Pathways triage system 
  Allegations made against persons working on behalf of the Trust in regard to their 

professional conduct

Learning from SI’s 
All SI`s require completion of a Root Cause Analysis (RCA) which seeks to identify contributory 
factors, root causes, learning for both individuals and the organisation and provide 
recommendations to prevent reoccurrence.

General approaches to learning from SI`s include: 

  Communication of key learning points through education, training and awareness 
including the use of the Trust`s Clinical Times as a form of communication  

  Clinical case reviews and reflection of the practice by individuals
  Development and review of clinical risk assessments to ensure identified risks are 

managed through the Trusts clinical risk management process. 
  Amendment to policies procedures and practices  

47



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 30 - of 44 March 2013 

  All Root Cause Analysis reports and their themes are reviewed by the Trust`s Learning 
Review Group which consists of multi-disciplinary membership which has an open invite 
to our commissioners and the Trust`s non-executives 

In addition to specific learning and recommendations monitored through the Trusts ‘SI learning 
log’ some generic learning has been undertaken.  

This year the Trust intends to further increase its internal scrutiny of recorded evidence of action 
taken following investigation recommendations. 

48



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 31 - of 44 March 2013 

2.17 Patient Experience 

Complaints
The Trust has received to date in 2012/13 (as at 28 February 2013) 439 complaints compared to 
313 (as at 31 March 2012) in 2011//12, an increase of 40.2% (126). The main reason for a 
complaint being raised relates to Response (Delay in the arrival of an Emergency or Non-
Emergency vehicle). 

Breakdown of Complaints by Service Type YTD: 

Justified Complaints (As at 28 February 2013)
The table below indicates of the 362 closed complaints 181 (50.0%) were classed as Justified.  
If a complaint is Justified learning maybe noted by the staff member in the form of a case review 
or Trust wide learning where possible. 

PALS concerns have increased year on year with 907 concerns raised in 2012/13 (YTD as at 28 
February 2013) compared to 810 in 2011/12, an increase of 12.0% (97). The main reason for a 
concern being raised related to Response (to include response times (delays), transport 
arrangements).

Ombudsman Requests

The majority of complaints were resolved through Local Resolution and therefore did not 
proceed to an independent review with the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman 
(PHSO).  During 2012/13 8 independent reviews were carried out compared to 4 the previous 
year.  The Trust currently has one case open with the PHSO. 

 2010-2011 2011 2012! 2012 2013! Variance 11/12 - 
12/13

EOC 53 90 126 36 

EU 132 160 204 44 

PTS 77 61 100 39 

OOH 0 1 0 !1 

Other 11 1 9 8 

Total! 273! 313! 439! 126!

 Total!! Justified! Non!Justified! Part!Justified!

! ! ! !

Call Management 96 49 40 7 

Attitude and Conduct 67 35 24 8 

Clinical   73 31 29 13 

Driving and Sirens  14 5 6 3 

Response  93 58 28 7 

Other   19 3 15 1 

Total!! ! 362! 181! 142! 39!

49



Q

Pa

Th
su

20
20
ha
at

37
S

Pa

Th
fo

Th
29

C

Th
in
re

Quality Acco

atient feed

he Trust h
urveyed th

000 Emerg
013.  Patie
ave compl
ttending En

709 Non-E
urvey with 

atient Eng

he Patient 
ocus meetin

he Patient 
9 events at

  Speak
  Heref
  Health
  Gypsy

omplimen

he Trust h
 2011/12. 

eceived com

W

ount

dback/ Su

has receiv
e following

gency Pati
ents have b
eted the P
ngagemen

Emergency
430 patien

gagement

Experienc
ngs being 

Experienc
ttended to 

k Easy Now
ford College
h and Well 
y Traveller 

nts

as receive
It is pleasi
mpared to 

West Midla

urveys 

ved 108 c
g:

ients – A
been aske
Patient Sur
nt Events a

y Patients
nts returnin

ce Team c
undertake

ce Team h
date (as a

w
e (with Here
Being Even
Event

ed 843 com
ing to note
the previo

nds Ambula

Page -

completed

postal surv
d to return
rvey whilst

across the R

s have be
ng their fee

continues to
n at Castle

has improv
at 28 Febru

eford LINK) 
nts in Wolve

mpliments
e that the T
ous year. 

ance Servic

- 32 - of 44

surveys t

vey was s
n their com
t member 
Region. 

een asked
edback to 

o engage 
e Vale Dial

ved its eng
uary 2013)

erhampton a

in 2012/13
Trust has s

ce NHS Fou

4

through th

sent to ran
mpleted sur

of the Pat

 to comp
date.

with Rena
lysis Unit.

agement a
.  Example

and Brierley

3 (as at 28
seen an 18

undation Tru

he Trust w

domly sele
rvey no lat
tient Exper

lete the N

l Patients 

across the 
es of event

y Hill

February 
8% (131) in

ust 

M

website an

ected patie
ter than Ap
rience Tea

Non-Emerg

across the

Region in
ts are as fo

2013) com
ncrease in

March 2013

nd has ta

ents in Ma
pril 2013.  
am have b

gency Pat

e Region, w

n 2012/13 w
ollows:

mpared to 
 Complime

3

rget

arch
149
een

tient

with 

with 

712 
ents 

50



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 33 - of 44 March 2013 

2.18 Workforce and Organisational Development  
The Trust is making progress towards the achievement of 70% paramedic skill mix. The Trust 
aims to achieve an average increase in Paramedic skill mix from 60% for 2012/2013 by 
increasing the number of paramedics from 1176 to 1304 i.e. 67% of operational staff for 
2013/2014. 

The Trust has worked hard to avoid vacancies in key areas that can lead to operational 
difficulties and adverse patient outcomes.  In order to achieve this, the Trust has reduced the 
average time from advert to appointment from 20 to 15 weeks.

2012/13 Appraisals Mandatory Training 

WMAS 60% 97% 

*figure accurate of 13.3.13  

Staff Development 2012/13
2013/14
Planned
Forecast

Technicians to Paramedics 100 40 
Emergency Care Assistants to Technician 40 30 

Paramedic to Advanced Paramedic 96 108 
Trauma Training 97% Completed 

Working in partnership with Staff side the Trust continues to develop a Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy and action plan to ensure that health and well-being of staff is supported. Reduction in 
average long term absence rate of over 4 weeks from 3% to 2.5% by 31 March 2013 

Managers and staff are being supported to update and develop their skills. The Trust are 
supporting up to 50 Managers to complete an Engaging Leaders Programme of management 
development. The Trust want to see a 5% improvement in staff recording that they feel valued 
and engaged in Staff survey results and the Trust want assurances that there is an Increase the 
number of staff with reviewed personal development plans to be in place from 90% to 95% by 
March 2013. The Trust also wants evidence that staff are supported to receive the appropriate 
level of training as per the training plan which equates to 18,746 mandatory training days to be 
delivered 

Staff Survey 
The Trust facilitates a Survey of its staff every year based on the National Staff Opinion Survey. 
The Trust Board receive a direct report on the results of the survey. The Survey is delivered 
through a cross directorate working party, including representatives from all parts of the trust 
and Trade Unions, to agree the key priorities based on the results. There are usually two action 
plans, one more strategic, owned by the Trust Board, and one with more tangible aspects, which 
is delivered through the working group. The action plan designed and delivered in 2012/13 (Built 
on results of the 2011 survey) covered areas such as Feeling valued by the Trust, 
Communication and Bullying and Harassment. To read more on the WMAS staff survey for 2012 
please use the following URL;
http://nhsstaffsurveys.com/cms/uploads/Individual%20Trust%20reports%202012/NHS_staff_sur
vey_2012_RYA_full.pdf

51



Q

2
W
an
gr
st
co

D
th
em

Th
D
ab
us

W
pu
Eq
m
th

Fo

1 E

2
 E

3
 E

Quality Acco

.19 Equ
We are alw
nd engagin
roups. Equ
trategies, t
ommunities

iversity in 
hat we serv
mployment

he Trust h
iversity fra
ble to iden
sers who s

We have a
ublish our 
quality Du

make inform
he impact o

or Further inform

Equality Delivery

Equality Data An

Equality Act 201

W

ount

uality & 
ways workin
ng with ou
uality and d
to public e
s how we c

employme
ve and hav
t and servi

has endors
amework, t
ntify and c
share the re

also publis
data with

ty (Equalit
med decisi
of our activ

mation please fo

y system 2010 h

nalysis report 20

0 http://www.leg

West Midla

Diversi
ng toward 

ur patients,
diversity is
engageme
can improv

ent produce
ve develop
ice delivery

sed the Eq
to assist in
consider fu
elevant pro

hed our E
h compreh
ty Act 201
ons about

vities on eq

ollow the link Eq

“Res

http://www.eastm

012/13 http://ww

gislation.gov.uk

nds Ambula

Page -

ity
equality a
 volunteer

s built into 
ent and co
ve our serv

es a workf
ped a visio
y which ref

quality Del
 delivering

urther step
otected ch

Equality Da
hensive an
0)3 as dem

t our polici
quality and 

uality Data Ana

spect, Dig

midlands.nhs.uk

ww.wmas.nhs.uk

/ukpga/2010/15

ance Servic

- 34 - of 44

and diversi
rs, staff, pu
everything

onsultation
vices and p

force sens
n for ensu
flects `resp

livery Syst
g better ou
ps which w
aracteristic

ata Analys
nalysis ann
monstrated
ies and pr
the protec

alysis report 201

gnity and F

k/about-us/inclu

k/  

5/contents 

ce NHS Fou

4

ity to the h
ublic mem
g that we d
 events, w
practices.

itive to the
ring equal

pect, dignit

tem (EDS)
tcomes for

will meet th
c group.

sis report 
nually, in 
d within th
ractices, w
cted charac

2 http://www.wm

Fairness fo

usion/eds/ 

undation Tru

heart of th
bers, gove

do from ou
where we 

e different n
ity, diversi
ty and fairn

),1 which is
r patients a
he needs o

2012/2013
order to m

he report w
which are b

cteristic gro

mas.nhs.uk/

or All” 

ust 

M

he organisa
ernors and
ur policies, 

regularly

needs of t
ty and inc
ness to all`

s an NHS
and staff, w
of our staf

32 and wi
meet our 
will improv
based on e
roups.

March 2013

ation, work
d local inte

practices
ask our lo

he commu
lusion, in b
`

S Equality 
we have b
ff and serv

ill continue
Public Se
e the way
evidence, 

3

king
rest 
and
ocal

unity
both 

and
een
vice 

e to 
ctor

y we 
and

52



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 35 - of 44 March 2013 

Part 3

3.1 Priorities for Improvements 2013-14  

The Trust has set the priorities for 2013/14 following engagement with patients, users and 
communities and the guiding principle has been “no decision about me without me”. The Trust 
is committed to ensure we have a process that reviews and maintains the quality of care to 
ensure provides high standard of care.

The projects we have selected are aimed at focusing a culture of safety and the integration of 
quality improvement into the everyday workings of the Trust.

Patient Safety Priorities 2013-14
Priority 1: Falls Pathway 

Rationale

Falls can have a devastating impact on quality of life and the Trust is committed to 
providing a safe environment where patients are protected from avoidable harm. This 
Trust want ensure that when our staff have face to face contact with someone who has 
fallen, the Trust will ensure that an appropriate referral is made to the correct service in 
order to assess that person assist in the prevention of a fall in the future. This year we 
plan to develop further the falls pathway by focusing on working in collaboration in local 
areas after engagement with our patients and scrutiny boards and building on the 
Directory of Service on prevention and appropriate referral in this area ensuring that 
people get referred to the right place at the right time for a better outcome.  

Measures
&

reporting
to board; 

Qtr. 1 : From the baseline of Calls WMAS received in 2012-13 related to falls to develop 
locally agreed pathways with participating CCGs and scope areas with falls services   

Qtr. 2: Areas without timely falls pathways and services to be raised with commissioners  

Qtr. 3: Education of local WMAS staff with VLE  

Qtr. 4: Demonstrate referrals for each participating area made  

Target
Increase referral to appropriate participating falls team by 25% 

See a reduction in attendance to Falls by 10%  

By When? 31 March 2014 

Outcome Patient Safety will improve by identifying, managing and reducing falls 

Baseline TBC

Lead Clinical Quality Manager with Directory of Service Leads  

53



Q

R

M

r
t

B

Quality Acco

Rationale

Measures
monthly 
reporting
to board

Target

By 
When?

Baseline

Lead

W

ount

The purpo
quality of c

KPI measu

Assessme

Two Pain 

Analgesia

  >85% co

31 March 

TBC

Head of C

West Midla

ose of this in
care given t

ures:

ent of circula

Scores Rec

administere

mpliance w

2014

linical Prac

nds Ambula

Page -

Priority 2: 

nitiative is to
to patients w

ation distal t

corded (befo

ed

with KPI mea

tice &Traum

ance Servic

- 36 - of 44

Lower Lim

o introduce 
who suffer l

to site of fra

ore & after 

asures

ma Lead  

ce NHS Fou

4

mb Fracture

a KPI natio
ower limb i

acture recor

treatment)

undation Tru

es

onally to me
njuries. 

rded 

ust 

M

easure and i

March 2013

improve the

3

e

54



Q

R

M
r
t

O

B

Quality Acco

Rationale

Measure
reporting
to board 

Target

By 
When?

Outcome 

Lead

Baseline

W

ount

Cannulatio
Infection th

Cannulatio
(ANTT) wh
identify to 
for insertio
Green stic
to make a 

Insertions
use of the 
are using t
in reducing

Improving
awareness
patient saf
role.

20 observa
Region pe

 95% use 

31 March 

Engageme
of HCAI 

Head of C

TBC

West Midla

on is one of
hat the Amb

on packs ar
henever the
the receivin

ons that wer
cker for whe

judgement

are observ
sticker and

the stickers
g the risk of

the use of 
s, on-going 
fety, quality

ations done
er quarter, w

of stickers a

2014

ent with rec

linical Prac

nds Ambula

Page -

Priorit

f the highes
bulance ser

re provided 
e situation a
ng hospital s
re Emergen

ere the full A
based on r

ed and aud
d documenta
s and passin
f harm occu

the stickers
engageme

y and protec

e by Clinical
which will giv

and commu

ceiving units

tice Infectio

ance Servic

- 37 - of 44

ty 3: Cann

st risk proce
rvice perform

so staff are
allows this to
staff whethe

ncy inserted
ANTT was p
risk whethe

dited by Clin
ation of ‘em
ng the inform
urring to pat

s and comm
ent with staff
cting them f

l Team Men
ve 100 obse

unication of 

s to assure t

on Preventio

ce NHS Fou

4

nulation

edures whic
ms.

e able to use
o happen.  
er ANTT wa

d so part of 
performed.
r to remove

nical Team M
mergency’ o
mation on to
tients.  

munication o
f and encou
rom infectio

ntors during
ervations pe

Aseptic or 

them of WM

on and Con

undation Tru

h can cause

e Aseptic N
In the packs
as possible 
the ANTT w
This enable

e or leave in

Mentors du
r ‘aseptic’ is
o receiving 

of this will be
uraging a cu
on is part of 

g mentored 
er quarter

Emergency

MAS commi

trol

ust 

M

e Healthcar

No Touch Te
ks there are 

– There is 
was not perf
es the rece

n the cannul

ring mentor
s audited, to
units which

e through ra
ulture where
f everyone’s

shifts in ea

y inserted 

itment to re

March 2013

re Associate

echnique
2 stickers t
a Red stick
formed and
iving hospit
la. 

ring shifts, t
o ensure sta
h is essentia

aising
e improving
s everyday 

ch area in t

duce the ris

3

ed

to
ker
d a 
tal

the
aff
al

g

the

sk

55



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 38 - of 44 March 2013 

Clinical Effectiveness Priorities 2013-14
Priority 4: Onset of symptom time

Rationale

Where Ambulance clinicians document time of onset of symptoms for patients suffering 
from a stroke we want to show that there has been a decrease in the time to getting the 
patient to the computerised tomography (CT Scan). This would improve patient outcome 
by reducing the time to thrombolysis treatment. This would assist in the reduction of the 
disabling effects a stroke can have on patients. 

Measure
reporting
monthly 
to board

Onset of Stroke Symptoms are documented in all Hyper Acute Stroke Cases 

Target 90% target of Hyper Acute Stroke patients have an onset of symptom time recorded 
where known 

By 
When? 31 March 2014 

Outcome Improved access to Hyper Acute Stroke Services 

Lead Head of Clinical Practice and Cardiac and Stroke   

Baseline TBC at 87% 

Priority 5: General Pain Management 

Rationale

Pain is defined as an “unpleasant sensory and emotional experience associated with 
actual or potential tissue damage” *. The patient deserves appropriate assessment and 
management of pain minimising any adverse physical or psychological effects for the 
patient. Documenting the pain score is a measurement allows WMAS to measure if pain 
assessment has been achieved. 

Measures
reporting
to board 

Qtr. :  Develop general  Pain management Guidelines to include scoring 

Qtr. 2&3: develop a pain workbook with E Learning and this will be uploaded to the 
Virtual Learning site to assist with pain management  

Qtr. 4: Documentation to increase by 10% from baseline for Qtr. 4 

Target An Learning package will be developed and Increase pain scoring documentation by 
10% of the baseline 

By When? 31 March 2014 

Outcome Better patients experience and clinical effectiveness 

Lead Clinical Quality Manager  

Baseline 39%

*Royal College of Anaesthetists Acute Pain Management: scientific Evidence 2009 

56



QQuality Acco

Rationale

Measure
reporting
Qtrly to 
board

Target

By 
When?

Outcome 

Lead

Baseline

W

ount

WMAS w
rapidly id
Centre (M
trauma pa
supportin
monitor th

The patie
trauma ce

95% of th

31 March

Improvem
Audit and

Head of C

80 per mo

West Midla

was instrume
entifies maj

MTC) hospit
atients are 

ng Trauma U
he effective

ents that trig
entre when 

he time   

h 2014 

ment in outc
d Research 

Clinical Prac

onth  direct

nds Ambula

Page -

Pri

ental in the 
jor trauma p
tals. Since t
now taken d
Unit (TU) ho
eness of the

gger the lev
they satisfy

comes for th
Network)

ctice and Tr

ly to major t

ance Servic

- 39 - of 44

ority 6: Tra

implementa
patients and
the system 
directly to M
ospitals by a
e Trauma Tr

el 1 or 2 of 
y the criteria

his patient g

rauma Lead

trauma cen

ce NHS Fou

4

auma

ation of a re
d delivers th
went live in

MTCs, other
a medic led
rigger tool in

the trigger 
a to do so 

group (evide

d

ntres

undation Tru

egional trau
hem to spec
n March 201
rs are trans
 team and W
n 2013-14. 

tool will be 

ence produc

ust 

M

ma care sy
cialist Major
12 the majo
sferred later
WMAS will 

directly tak

ced by natio

March 2013

stem that 
r Trauma 

ority of majo
r from 
continue to

en to a maj

onal Traum

3

or

o

or

a

57



Q

P

Quality Acco

Patient E

Rationale

Measure
reporting
to board 

Target

By When?

Outcome 

Lead

Baseline

Rationale

Measure
reporting
to board

Target

By 
When?

Outcome 

Lead

Baseline

W

ount

Experie

e

Patient c
ensure t
deliver. T
experien
on occas
following

Through
Health W
Recomm

 5000 pa

? 31 Marc

Learn fro

Head of 

TBC

Raise aw
challenge
abuse an
of one’s f
independ
express t
able to co
engagem
and isola
time.

Qtr. 1: sc

Qtr. 2: Ra

Qtr. 3&4:

 To have

31 March

Improve

Clinical Q

TBC in Q

West Midla

nce Prio

care is at th
hat we colle
The Trust c
nce so we c
sion’s poor 
g question ‘w

h quarterly p
Watch and F
mendation te

atients

h 2014 

om patients

Patient and

P

wareness of
e. To respe
nd patients 
family; patie
dence, choic
their needs 
omplain wit

ment with fa
ated and in n

cope and Ba

aise awaren

: Staff signe

 dignity cha

h 2014 

awareness 

Quality Man

Qtr1

nds Ambula

Page -

orities 2
Priority

e centre of 
ect the view

continues to
can see whe

service. In 
would you r

patient surve
Foundation
est 

s and improv

d Public Exp

Priority 8: W

f dignity and
ct people’s 
deserve the
ents merit  p
ce and cont
and wants;
hout fear of
mily membe
need of car

aseline  

ness of the 

ed up to the

ampions up 

of dignity in

ager

ance Servic

- 40 - of 44

2013-14
y 7: Patien

everything
ws of service
o learn from 
ere the serv
2012/13 the
recommend

eys, as wel
Trust Gove

ve the patie

perience

WMAS dign

d increasing
dignity sho

e same resp
personalise
trol; everyo
; at all times
f retribution
ers and car
re they shou

WMAS Dig

e dignity cha

by 25% 

n the Trust 

ce NHS Fou

4

4
nt Survey

we do and 
e users to in
patients, ca

vice user ha
e current Pa
d this servic

l as an onlin
ernors  to in

ent experien

nity challen

g sign up to 
ould include
pect one wo

ed care and 
ne should b
s  people ha
 when thing

rers as care
uld be referr

gnity campa

allenge  

improving p

undation Tru

it is importa
nform us of 
arers and m

as reported 
atient Surve

ce to friends

ne survey a
clude the F

nce 

nge

the WMAS
a zero tole

ould want fo
where poss

be listened t
ave a right t
gs go wrong
e partners; w
red to the ri

ign amongs

patients exp

ust 

M

ant to the T
f quality of c
members of 
good exper
ey incorpora
s and family

and engage
riends and 

S dignity in c
erance of all
or oneself o
sible a leve
to and allow
to privacy: P
g and there 
where peop
ight service

st staff

perience

March 2013

rust to 
care we 

the public 
rience and 
ates the 

y`.

ment with 
Family

care
 forms of 

or a membe
el of 
wed to 
People feel 
should be 

ple are lonel
e at the right

3

r

y
t

58



QQuality Acco

T
a

d

U

s

r
I

s
h

W

ount

This is a p
a week at 

fro
“Th

so I hadn
get me

“
dialysing
had to wa
11pm. An

Unfortuna
pat

“Th
he had to 
on the W

“A
the dialys

end of
without

because t
of my sug
since I sh

“Th
list for m
home th
been firs

“W
she respo
to all Driv
that drive

requested
I was impr

tha

“
schedulin
have not h

“It is ke

West Midla

patient sto
her local d
om hospit
he Ambula
n't eaten, t
e somethin

“I arrived 
until abou
ait in recep

n ambulan
left & th

ately this w
tient home

he Driver d
drop off a

Ward until w

As I am dia
sis session
f the sessi
having a 
this would
gar level, t
hould have

The end res
my operat
he same d
st on list f

When I mad
onded real
vers (and 
ers did no

d by medic
ressed by
at I was ge

“In additio
ng of staff 
had a sing

ey to make

One of t

nds Ambula

Page -

ory from a
dialysis un
tal prior to
ance trans
this was a 
ng to eat w

at the dial
ut 6.45pm,
ption for a
ce arrived

he driver s

was not th
e by a fello

did come 
another pa
well after m

abetic, my
n, and I be
ion. The n
cup of sw
d make me
they referr
e been firs

sult was m
tion Instea
day & I too
for surgery

able to
de the amb
lly quickly
these two

ot make su
cal staff to
y the speed
etting con

on to these
were put 

gle compla

e sure eve

the stories

ance Servic

- 41 - of 44

a renal dia
nit. She is

o planned 
sport arriv
problem,

when I retu
midn

lysis unit 
, which m
an 1hr & 3
d to pick m
said that h

he case as
ow driver 

back, to t
atient, wh
midnight a

mou
y sugar lev
elieve that

nurses wo
weet tea an
e later stil
red to the 
st on the l

morn
my operati
ad of first.
ok up a ho
ry, as was 
o go home
bulance m

y and she a
o drivers s
uch chang
o make suc
d with whi

nstant com

e measure
into opera
aint about
speaks fo

eryone who
happe

s that led 

ce NHS Fou

4

lysis patie
s a diabeti
surgery fo

ved at the 
but the w

urned as l
night
early but 
eant that b

30minutes
me up, I sa
he would b

s the drive
and the la

take me ba
hich he did
and by thi
uth.
vels are te
t my suga
uld not no

nd some b
ll. The hos
doctors w

list, they w
ning”
ion was c
 This also

ospital bed
originally

e the same
manager a
advised m

specifically
ges betwee
ch change
ich this w

mplaints p

es I know 
ation. Sinc
t this type
or itself”

o Is Involv
ens.”

us to prio

undation Tru

ent who di
c who was
or the foll
hospital e

ward nurse
long as I w

I was not 
because I

s and I wou
aid I only h
be in recep

er was ask
ady was u

ack to the 
d first, so I
is time I w

ested at th
ar was reco
ormally all
biscuits, b
spital staff
who decid
would sort

hanged to
o meant th
d for anoth
y planned,
e day”
ware of w

me that she
y were spo
en themse
es, they sh

was dealt w
prior to this

that some
ce this has
e of proble

ved Is mad

rity 9 for 2

ust 

M

ialyses th
s going fo
owing day
early at ab
es said the
was back b

on the ma
I had arriv
uld finish 
had 6 or 7
ption “

ked to take
upset by th

hospital, 
I didn’t arr

was officia

he start an
orded as 3
low me to
ut they co

ff were ma
ded I had t
rt out the l

o being las
hat I could
her night. 
, I may hav

what had h
e had mad
oken to) t
elves. If th
hould get 

with, and I 
is incident

e changes
s been de

em; I think

de aware

2013/14

March 2013

ree times 
or dialysis
y;
bout 5pm 
ey would 
before

achine
ved early I 

at about 
7 minutes 

e another 
his

however
rrive back 
lly nil by 

nd end of 
3.9 at the 
leave

ould not 
de aware 

to eat and 
list in the 

st on the 
d not go 

If I had 
ve been 

happened
de It clear
to ensure 
hey were 
approval.
must say

t,”

s to the 
ealt with, I 
k that this 

of what 

3

s

r

.
y

59



QQuality Acco

Rationale

Measure
reporting
Qtrly to 
board

Target

By 
When?

Outcome 

Lead

Baseline

N

1
2
3
4

W

ount

Following
for 2013/
rest of th
dialysis tr
ambulanc
cause for
get home
the regio
WMAS a

Standard
the booke

Standard

Standard
miles from

Standard

Standard

Standard

31 March

Improvem

Clinical Q

TBC

P
No

1
2
3
4

West Midla

g patient co
/14. Renal p
eir lives. Re
reatment du
ce transpor
r their delay
e within a re
n WMAS ha
re exclusive

d 1: Patients
ed appointm

d 2: Patients

d 3: Patients
m pick up to

d 1: Year to 

d 2: Year to 

d 3: Year to 

h 2014 

ments in pat

Quality Man

Propose

Acute Admi
Integrated E
Patient Safe
Year 2 Mak

nds Ambula

Page -

Priority

mplaints an
patients that
enal patient
ue to many 
rt we seek to
ys in order t
easonable ti
ave develop
ely respons

s arrive to th
ment time 

s are to be c

s are to spe
o drop off. 

End 90% 

End 90% 

End 95% 

tient experie

ager

ed CQU
CQUIN Goa

ssion avoida
End of life reg
ety Thermom
ke ready sche

ance Servic

- 42 - of 44

y 9: Renal 

nd patient s
t require dia
ts can expe
reasons. F
o ensure th
to improve t
ime. Despit
ped standar
sible for the 

heir renal d

collected no

end no longe

ence and w

IN Prior
al

ance  
gister  

meter  
eme 

ce NHS Fou

4

Patients

urvey WMA
alysis three 
rience long
or those ren
at ambulan
the patient e
te the comp
rd governan
delay.

ialysis appo

o later than 

er than 60m

wellbeing 

rities fo
CQ

undation Tru

AS decided 
times a we
days when

nal patients
ce transpor
experience

plexity of eac
nce checks 

ointment no

60mins afte

mins on our 

or 2013/
UIN Detail  

TBC
TBC
TBC
TBC

ust 

M

this impera
eek tends to
n attending 
s that are el
rt is not the 
and suppo
ch individua
for the regi

o later than 

er booked p

vehicles, w

14
Ex

March 2013

ative priority
o be for the 
hospital for 
igible for 
exclusive

rt them to 
al contract i
on when 

15mins afte

pick up time

within ten 

xpected  
value 
TBC
TBC
TBC
TBC

3

y

n

er

e.

60



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 43 - of 44 March 2013 

Annex 1: Statements from NHS Commissioning Board or relevant 
commissioning groups (as determined by the NHS (Quality 
Accounts) Amendment Regulation 20120 

Annex 2: Local Healthwatch, Overview and Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees

Annex 3: Statement of directors` responsibilities in respect of the 
Quality Report 

61



West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Quality Account Page - 44 - of 44 March 2013 

Further information 

Further information and action plans on all projects can be obtained by contacting the lead 
clinician named on the project 

Further information on performance for local areas is available as an Information Request from 
our Freedom of Information Officer or from the leads for the individual projects. 

Progress reports will be available within the Trust Board papers every three months with the end 
of year progress being given in the Quality Report to be published in June 2014. 

If you require a copy in another language, or in a format such as large print, Braille or audio 
tape, please call West Midlands Ambulance Service on 01384 215 555 or write to:

West Midlands Ambulance Service 
Regional Headquarters 
Millennium Point 
Waterfront Business Park 
Brierley Hill 
West Midlands 
DY5 1LX 

You can also find out more information by visiting our website: www.wmas.nhs.uk

If you have any comments, feedback or complaints about the service you have received from 
the Trust, please contact the Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) in the first instance; 
01384 246370

62



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Updated March 2013  Page 1 of 4
   

Abbreviation Full Description 
A&E Accident and Emergency 
ABP Annual Business Plan 
ACDC Active Compression Decompression 
ACLS Advanced Cardiac Life Support 
ACPO Association of Chief Police Officers 
AD Active Directory 
AED Automated External Defibrillator 
AFA Ambulance Fleet Assistant 
AfC Agenda for Change 
AMI Acute Myocardial Infarction 
AMPDS Advanced Medical Priority Despatch System 
AQI Ambulance Quality Indicators 
ARMS Ambulance Risk Management Standards 
ARP Ambulance Radio Project 
ARV Alternative Response Vehicle 
ASN Ambulance Service Network 
ASD Annual Skills Development 
BASICs British Association of Immediate Care Doctors 
BC Black Country  
BME Black and Minority Ethnic 
C&W Coventry and Warwickshire  
CAD Computer Aided Dispatch 
CAT Category 
CBRN Chemical, Biological, Radiological, Nuclear 
CC Call Connect 
CCGs Clinical Commission Groups 
CDP Career Development Plan 
CEN Committee of European Normalisation 
CfH Connecting for Health 
CFMS Counter Fraud and Security Management Service 
CFR Community First Responder 
CHD LIT Coronary Heart Disease Local Implementation Team 
CNST Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts 
CPI Clinical Performance Indicator 
CPO Community Paramedic Officer 
CPR Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation 
CQC Care Quality Commission 
CQUIN Commissioning for Quality and Innovation 
CRES Cash Releasing Efficiency Savings 
CSD Clinical Support Desk 
CSU Commissioning Support Unit 
CTS Courier Transport Service 
DCA Double Crewed Ambulance 
HDU High Dependency Unit 
DGH District General Hospital 
DH Department of Health 
DN District Nurse 
E&U Emergency & Urgent 
EBITDA Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation 
ECA Emergency Care Assistant 
ECIST The Emergency Care Intensive Support Team 

63



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Updated March 2013  Page 2 of 4
   

Abbreviation Full Description 
ECPAG Emergency Call Prioritisation Advisory Group 
ECP Emergency Care Practitioner 
ECR Extra Contractual Referral 
ECS Emergency Care System 
ED Executive Director 
EDI Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 
EDS Equality Delivery System 
EFL External Financing Limit 
EIA Equality Impact Assessment 
EISEC Enhanced Information System for Emergency Controls 
EHR Electronic Health Record 
EMB Executive Management Board 
EOC Emergency Operations Centre 
EPO Emergency Planning Officer 
EPRR Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response 
ERMA Emergency Response Management Arrangements 
ESR Electronic Staff Record 
FAAW First Aid at Work 
FAST Face, Arm, Speech Test 
FY Financial Year 
FT Foundation Trust 
FTN Foundation Trust Network 
FTGA Foundation Trust Governors Association 
GP General Practitioner 
HALO Hospital Ambulance Liaison Officer 
HART Hazardous Area Response Team 
HCAI Healthcare Acquired Infections 
HCRT Health Referral Team 
HCSW Health Care Support Worker 
HPA Health Protection Agency 
HPC Health Professions Council 
HQ Headquarters 
HSE Health and Safety Executive 
ICD Incident Command Desk 
ICCS Integrated Control and Command System 
ICP Immediate Care Point 
ICT Information and Communications Technology 
IG Information Governance 
IGT Information Governance Toolkit 
IHCD Institute of Health Care Development 
IIP Investors in People 
ILCOR International Liaison Committee on Resuscitation 
IMAS Interim Management and Support 
IM&T Information Management and Technology  
IMR Internal Management Review  
IOSH Institute of Safety and Health 
IPC Infection Prevention and Control 
IRU Incident Response Unit 
IWL Improving Working Lives 
JESIP Joint Emergency Services Interoperability Programme 
JRCALC Joint Royal Colleges Ambulance Liaison Committee 

64



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Updated March 2013  Page 3 of 4
   

Abbreviation Full Description 
KA34 Department of Health Korner Return 
KPIs Key Performance Indicators 
KSF Knowledge & Skills Framework 
LAN Local Area Network 
LAT Local Area Teams 
LDC Leadership Development Centre 
LINKs Local Involvement Networks 
LMS Logistics Medical Service 
LSMS Local Security Management Specialist 
LUCAS Lund University Cardio Assist System 
MAA Midlands Air Ambulance 
MAU Medical Assessment Unit 
MEOC Mobile Emergency Operations Centre 
MERIT Medical Emergency Response Incident Team 
MINAP Myocardial Infarction Audit Project 
MISU Major Incident Support Unit 
MIU Major Incident Unit 
MP Millennium Point 
MP Member of Parliament 
NARU National Ambulance Resilience Unit 
NASMeD National Ambulance Service Medical Directors 
NED Non Executive Director 
NHSCB National Health Service Commissioning Board 
NHSE National Health Service Executive 
NHSLA National Health Service Litigation Authority 
NHSP National Health Service Pathways 
NICE National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence 
NLC National Leadership Council 
NOS National Operation Standards 
NpfIT National Programme for IT 
NSF for CHD National Service Framework for Coronary Heart Disease 
OOH Out of Hours 
ONS Office for National Statistics  
ORCON Operational Readiness Consultants 
PALS Patient Advice and Liaison Service 
PbR Payment by Results 
PDR Personal Development Review 
PCC Primary Care Clinic 
PCI Primary Percutaneous Coronary Intervention 
PCT Primary Care Trust 
PFI Private Finance Initiative 
PHTLS Pre-Hospital Trauma Life Support 
PIs Performance Indicators 
PLS Paramedic Life Support 
POMIS/STOMIS Purchase Order & Stores Management Information Systems 
PoP Point of Presence 
PPEG Public & Patient Engagement Group 
PRF Patient Report Form 
PSIAM Priority Solutions Integrated Access Management 
PTS Patient Transport Service 
QIA Quality Impact Assessment 

65



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Updated March 2013  Page 4 of 4
   

Abbreviation Full Description 
QIPP Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Performance 
REAP Resourcing Escalatory Action Plan 
RIDDOR Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences 

Regulations
ROSC Return of Spontaneous Circulation 
RPST Risk Pooling Scheme for Trusts 
RRV Rapid Response Vehicle 
SfBH Standards for Better Health 
SCR Serious Case Review 
SHA Strategic Health Authority 
SI Serious Incident 
SLA Service Level Agreement 
SOC Strategic Operations Centre 
SOM Standard Operating Model 
SOP Standard Operating Procedure 
SPC Statistical Process Control 
SPA Single Point of Access 
SR0 Senior Responsible Officer 
SSAG Staff Survey Action Group 
SSP System Status Plan 
STEIS Strategic Executive Information System 
STEMI ST Elevation Myocardial Infarction 
STREAM Strategic Reperfusion Early After Myocardial Infarction) 
SWOT Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities & Threats 
TAS Telephone Answering Service 
TMIU Temporary Minor Injury Unit 
TUPE Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 

2006
UCS Unscheduled Care Service 
UHB University Hospital Birmingham 
UHCW University Hospital Coventry & Warwickshire 
UHU Unit Hour Utilisation 
UHNS University Hospital North Staffs 
UKTFT United Kingdom Transport for Transplants 
UPS Uninterruptible power supply 
USAR Urban Search and Rescue 
UTC University Technical College 
VAS Voluntary Aid Services 
VCS Voluntary Car Service 
WAN Wide Area Network 
WBA Work Based Assessment 
WDC Workforce Development Confederation 
WM West Mercia 
WMAS West Midlands Ambulance Service 
WNAA Warwickshire and Northamptonshire Air Ambulance 
WTE Whole Time Equivalent 
YTD Year to Date 

66


	Agenda
	
	4 Minutes
	7 Care Quality Commission (CQC)
	9 Quality Accounts: West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust
	WMAS Quality Account Draft Master 2013-14 (inc glossary)


